
October 28, 2019City Council Agenda   Page 1 of 2 

 
 

City of Lake Geneva, 626 Geneva St, Lake Geneva, WI 53147- 262.248.3673- www.cityoflakegeneva.com 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA REGULAR COMMON COUNCIL 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2019 6:00 P.M. 

LAKE GENEVA CITY HALL; COUNCIL CHAMBERS (MAIN LEVEL) 

 
Members: 

Mayor Tom Hartz, Council President, John Halverson, Council Vice President, Cindy Flower,  
Alderpersons: Selena Proksa, Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Ken Howell, Shari Straube, and Rich Hedlund 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Mayor Hartz calls the meeting to order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Alderperson Howell 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Awards, Presentations, Proclamations, and Announcements 

 
5. Re-consider business from previous meeting 

 
6. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 

hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 
 

7. Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
 

8. Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of September 23, 2019, as prepared and distributed 
 

9. CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, Licensing and Regulation on October 1, 2019 and October 15, 
2019 Any item listed on the consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The 
request requires no second, is not discussed, and is not voted upon. 

 
a. 2019-2021 Original & Renewal Operator License applications filed by various applicants as listed in packet 

 
10. Discussion/Action regarding Ordinance 19-16 an ordinance amending subsection (a)(1), No parking, standing or 

stopping zones, of Section 210, Parking Regulations, of Article VI, Traffic Code, of Chapter 74, Traffic and Vehicles 
of the City of Lake Geneva Municipal Code; relating to parking regulations on Hillside Drive and Lake Shore Drive 
 

11. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R69 approving the publication of Public Hearing Notice regarding the 
City of Lake Geneva 2020 Operating and Capital Budgets 
 

12. Recommendation of the Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee of October 1, 2019 & October 15, 2019- 
Ald Howell 

 
a. Discussion/ Action regarding Resolution 19-R68 amending the City of Lake Geneva Fee Schedule to update 

the Event Permit Policy fees 

 



October 28, 2019City Council Agenda   Page 2 of 2 

 
b. Discussion/Action regarding contract with Gage Marine for Pier Installation and Maintenance for 2019-2021 

 
c. Discussion/Action regarding final payment to Sonrise Construction for the White River Disc Golf Course 

Pedestrian Bridge Replacement Project in an amount not to exceed $684.10 
 

d. Discussion/Action regarding approval of Pay Request #2 for Payne & Dolan Inc in the amount of 
$423,688.82 for the 2019 Street Improvement Program 
 

e. Discussion/Action regarding job descriptions for the positions of Beach Attendant and Beach Lead 
 

f. Discussion/Action regarding parking payment option; Adding customer payment option with “Passport” App 
 

g. Discussion/Acceptance of October 1, 2019 and October 15, 2019 Finance, Licensing, and Regulation 
Committee Payment Approval Reports 

 
13. Recommendation of the Planning Commission of October 21, 2019- Ald Skates 

 
a. Discussion/Action regarding working schedule and incorporating additional Public Participation for the 

Comprehensive Plan Schedule 
 

14. Mayoral Appointments 
 

a. Appointment of Dennis Lyon to the Lake Geneva Utility Commission with a term to expire October 1, 2022 
 

15. Motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(e) for the purposes of deliberating or negotiating the 
purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified business whenever 
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session regarding: Police Union Contract Negotiations  
 

16. Motion to return to open session pursuant to Wisconsin Statues 19.85 (2) and take action on any items discussed in 
closed session 
 

17. Adjournment 
 

Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance to participate in this meeting or hearing, should be made to the City 
Clerk’s office in advance so the appropriate accommodations can be made. 

 



September 23, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA REGULAR COMMON COUNCIL MINUTES 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 6:00 P.M. 
LAKE GENEVA CITY HALL; COUNCIL CHAMBERS (MAIN LEVEL) 

 
Members: Mayor Tom Hartz, Council President, John Halverson, Council Vice President, Cindy Flower, Alderpersons: Selena 
Proksa, Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Ken Howell, Shari Straube, and Rich Hedlund 
 
Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Alderperson Flower led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call 
Present: Howell, Halverson, Straube, Proksa, Dunn, Hedlund, Skates, and Flower 
Absent: None 
 
Awards, Presentations, Proclamations, and Announcements 
 
Re-consider business from previous meeting 
Motion by Straube to reconsider the Vandewalle Proposal for Services in regards to Hillmoor Property Concept Plan, 
second by Halverson. Straube indicated that has been evaluating this and doesn’t agree with the work being done. Dunn 
agreed in that the City doesn’t own the property and feels that the developer should bring a plan for development. Straube 
felt that the comprehensive plan should be done first as the initial step in this process. Flower noted that this could be a 
tool to really get an idea of what could be done there collectively without a developer present. Straube indicated that at the 
previous Council meeting it was discussed that only one plan would have presented and she feels that it shouldn’t be just 
one plan. 
 
Motion by Howell to call the questions, second by Hedlund. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Motion to reconsider carried 4-3, with Proksa, Skates, and Flower voting no and with Hedlund abstaining. 
   
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public hearing 
items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 
 
Trish Schaefer, 403 Center St; Spoke in opposition of some of the practices of Johns Disposal and would like to see better 
follow up with complaints made with John’s Disposal. 
 
Sherri Ames; 603 Center St; Spoke in opposition of some of the practices of Johns Disposal and would like to see better 
follow up with complaints made with John’s Disposal. She also spoke in opposition of the conditional use for 323 Broad 
St and worried about the upper condos becoming tourist rooming houses. 
 
Peg Espositio; 124 Darwin St; Spoke in opposition of the funding of the concept plan to be provided by Vandewalle in 
regards to the former Hillmoor Property. 
 
Maureen Marks; 834 Dodge St; Spoke in opposition of the funding of the concept plan to be provided by Vandewalle in 
regards to the former Hillmoor Property. 
 
Mary Jo Fesenmaier; 1085 S Lake Shore Dr; Spoke in opposition of the funding of the concept plan to be provided by 
Vandewalle in regards to the former Hillmoor Property. 
 
Dick Malmin; N1991 S Lake Shore Dr; Spoke in opposition of the funding of the concept plan to be provided by 
Vandewalle in regards to the former Hillmoor Property. 
 
Terry O’Neill; 954 George St; Spoke in opposition of the funding of the concept plan to be provided by Vandewalle in 
regards to the former Hillmoor Property. 

 



September 23, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 2 of 4 

 
Don Ogden; 108 Evelyn Ln; Spoke in opposition of the funding of the concept plan to be provided by Vandewalle in 
regards to the former Hillmoor Property. 
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
Clerk Kropf noted that there wasn’t correspondence to acknowledge at that time. 
 
Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of September 9, 2019, as prepared and distributed 
Motion by Howell to approve the minutes of the September 9, 2019 City Council meeting, second by Halverson. No 
discussion. Motion carried 8-0.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, Licensing and Regulation on September 17, 2019 
Any item listed on the consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request 
requires no second, is not discussed, and is not voted upon. 
 
-2019-2021 Original & Renewal Operator License applications filed by various applicants as listed in packet 
 
-Approval of a Riviera Ballroom Lease Agreement Application filed by VISIT Lake Geneva to be used January 27, 2020 
through February 2, 2020 for the event of Winterfest and a Street Banner Permit Application filed by VISIT Lake Geneva 
to be displayed January 1, 2020 through February 2, 2020 (Fees for both applications to equal $410) 
Motion by Howell to approve the consent agenda, second by Hedlund. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
First Reading of Ordinance 19-15 an ordinance amending subsection (1), Single-Stop Intersections, of Section 204, Stop 
Intersections, of Article VI, Traffic Code, of Chapter 74, Traffic and Vehicles of the City of Lake Geneva Municipal 
Code; relating to the addition of a stop sign at the intersection of Lake View Dr and Lake Shore Dr 
Mayor Hartz offered Ordinance 19-15 as a first reading. 
 
Motion by Proksa to suspend the rules and waive second reading, second by Skates. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Mayor Hartz offered Ordinance 19-15 as a second reading.  
 
Motion by Proksa to approve Ordinance 19-15, second by Skates. Proksa noted that this was approved by the Police 
Department and was approved unanimously by both the Public Works Committee and the Finance Committee. Motion 
carried 8-0. 
 
Recommendation of the Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee of September 17, 2019- Ald Howell 
 
Discussion/Action regarding approval of Insurance Policy Renewal for the period of 10/1/2019 through 10/01/2020 with 
R & R Insurance 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Hedlund. City Administrator noted that R&R insurance is a part of the League 
Municipal Insurance and that this policy would come with a $10,000 savings. Hedlund thanked staff for the training and 
education which was evident when looking at the decrease of worker’s comp. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding adding insurance coverage for Cyber Security through R & R Insurance in an amount not to 
exceed $2,475.00 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Hedlund. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding amending the City of Lake Geneva Event Permit Policy per the recommendations of the 
Board of Park Commissioners 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Skates. Clerk Kropf reviewed the changes within the event permit policy from 
the recommendation of the Park Board. Motion carried 8-0.  
 
Discussion/Action regarding approval of an agreement with John’s Disposal for Curbside Collection of Solid Waste and 
Recyclables for the years 2020-2024 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Hedlund. Mayor Hartz noted that he would like to have John’s Disposal come to 
the City every quarter with any complaints they may have received and what the resolve was. Hedlund praised John’s 



September 23, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 3 of 4 

Disposal for their work and noted that he has had very few problems with them. Hartz noted that this report is something 
that can be generated through their software.  
Motion to amendment by Howell to include that the City receive a quarterly report of complaints and resolve from John’s 
Disposal, second by Flower. Motion carried 7-1, with Hedlund voting no. 
Original motion carried 8-0.  
 
 
Discussion/Action regarding approval of Pay Request #1 for Payne & Dolan Inc in the amount of $201,211.57 for the 
2019 Street Improvement Project 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Flower. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding approval of a Task Order with Kapur & Associates to provide Civil Engineering Services as 
it relates to the 2020-2025 Street Improvement Projects plans and budgets, in an amount not to exceed $10,000  
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Flower. Howell noted that this project would help the City to identify what roads 
will need to be improved and can also help the City organize the street projects with the utilities. This will also 
incorporate the bike/pedestrian study. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding identifying funding source for the Vandewalle Concept Plan regarding the former Hillmoor 
Property 
Motion by Howell to approve the funding source of the concept plan to be the City contingency fund contingent upon City 
Attorney review of the reconsideration, second by Hedlund. No discussion. Motion carried 6-2, with Straube and 
Halverson voting no. 
 
Discussion/Acceptance of September 17, 2019 Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee Payment Approval Report 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Skates. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Recommendation of the Planning Commission of September 16, 2019- Ald Skates  
 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R67 authorizing the issuance of an Exterritorial Platting (ETP) filed by 
Woodhill Farms Nursery, Inc., N1445 STH 120, Lake Geneva, to allow an Extraterritorial Platting review for a two lot 
CSM in the Town of Linn, to Tax Key No. IA462300001 
Motion by Skates to approve, second by Flower. Skates noted that this is a division of two lots and the Plan Commission 
did not identify any issues. Motion carried 8-0.  
 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R65 authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by 
Lake Geneva Architects, 201 Broad St. Lake Geneva, for a request to construct a 2 story Commercial Multi-Tenant 
Building on the property located at 323 Broad St located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district. Tax Key No. 
ZA464600002 
Motion by Skates to approve contingent upon approval from property owner and favorable engineering review, second by 
Proksa. Skates noted that the design was wonderfully executed and that the neighbors did have some concern with 
engineering component of the request. Hedlund noted that this was a major improvement to that property and  exactly 
what this space needed. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R66 authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by 
Robert Nabasny, 311 S. Wells St Lake Geneva, for a request to construct a 2 story Residential Addition to the property 
located at 1544 W. Main St located in the Estate Residential - 1(ER-1) zoning district. Tax Key No. ZLM00070 
Motion by Skates to approve, second by Proksa. Skates noted that there was a request that the Plan Commission review of 
“as builts” for this project.  Flower noted that there was approval of various storm water runoff and wanted to know how 
this could be preserved in the future. Attorney Draper noted that this would be an obligation of the home owner and could 
be an issue between neighbors. The City couldn’t interfere with any issues once the plan is approved. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(e) for the purposes of deliberating or negotiating 
the purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified business whenever 
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session regarding: Police Union Contract Negotiations  
Motion by Hedlund to convene the Council into closed session, second by Skates. Motion carried on a roll call vote 8-0. 
The Council convened into closed session at 7:27 p.m. 



September 23, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 4 of 4 

 
Motion to return to open session pursuant to Wisconsin Statues 19.85 (2) and take action on any items discussed in 
closed session 
Motion by Howell to reconvene the Council into Open Session, second by Straube. Motion carried on a roll call vote 8-0. 
The Council reconvened into open session at 7:40 p.m.. No action was taken on the closed session item. 
 
 
Adjournment 

 
Motion by Hedlund to adjourn the meeting of the Common Council, second by Halverson. Motion carried. The meeting 
adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 



 
Provisional License: 
 
Original License: 
Amanda Swaney 
Melanie Eschbach 
Michael Higgins 
Natalie Cooper 
Carissa Cobb 
Margaret Hertlein 
Paul Barr 
Linda Probst 
 
Renewal Operator: 
Lauren Walker 
 
 



Ordinance 19-16   Page 1 of 3 
 

 

ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

An ordinance amending subsection (a)(1), No parking, standing or stopping zones, of Section 210, Parking 
Regulations, of Article VI, Traffic Code, of Chapter 74, Traffic and Vehicles of the City of Lake Geneva 
Municipal Code; relating to parking regulations on Hillside Drive and Lake Shore Drive 

 
Committee 

 
N/A 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 19-16 First Reading :   
Second Reading : 

October 28, 2019 
November 11, 2019 

 
The City of Lake Geneva Common Council does ordain as follows: 
 
(a) No parking, standing or stopping zones.  

 
(1) No vehicle shall be parked, stopped or standing, except to comply with the directions of a traffic 

officer in any of the following: 
 

Alley, between Marshall Street and Ann Street, running from Center Street to Williams Street, behind Fire 
Department 
Baker Street, south side, easterly from east curbline of Wrigley Drive to west curbline of South Lake Shore 
Drive from hours of 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. 
Broad Street, west side, from Dodge Street 50 feet north 
Broad Street, west side, from north curb of alley between Main Street and Geneva Street to a point 74 feet 
north 
Broad Street, west side, 65 feet south of North Street 
Campbell Street, south side, from South Lake Shore Drive to Wells Street 
Campbell Street, south side, from Wrigley Drive to South Lake Shore Drive 
Center Street, east side, from the north curbline of Wisconsin Street to the south curbline of Sheridan 
Street 
Clover Street, east side, from Park Row to LaSalle Street 
Cook Street, west side, from the north curbline of Wisconsin Street to the south curbline of North Street 
Curtis Street, east side, from a point 807 feet south of the curb of Main Street to a point 950 feet south of 
the south curb of Main Street 
Dodge Street, north side, from Broad Street to Forrest Street 
Dodge Street, north side, from Sage Street to Center Street 
Dodge Street, south side, from the intersection of Elmwood Avenue and Dodge Street to a point 450 feet 
east 
Edwards Boulevard, in its entirety 
Elm Street, west side, from South Street to South Lake Shore Drive 
Elmwood Avenue, both sides, from the north line of the intersection with Main Street, 160 feet north 
Elmwood Avenue, east side, from Dodge Street, 60 feet south 
Elmwood Avenue, west side, from Linda Lane to Dodge Street 
Fremont Street, east side 
Hillside Drive, east side 
Interchange North, both sides, north of Center Street to the City limits 



Ordinance 19-16   Page 2 of 3 
 

Lake Shore Drive, south side 
Madison Street, east side, from Wisconsin Street to Dodge Street 
Maxwell Street, west side, from Geneva Street to Dodge Street 
Mill Street, both sides, from south curbline of Geneva Street to north curbline of Main Street 
North Street, both sides, from the west curbline of Center Street to the east curbline of Cook Street except 
for the south side of the 700 block of North Street 
Pleasant Street, south side 
Rogers Court, north side, from Center to William Street 
Sage Street, east side, from easterly extension of the south curbline of Dodge Street to the north curbline of 
Mill Street 
Sage Street, east side, north of the fire hydrant at Sage and Grove Streets, a distance of 121 feet 
Sage Street, east side, from the south curbline of Water Street to a point 155 feet north to the easterly 
extension of the north curbline of Dodge Street 
Sage Street, west side, from south curbline of Highway 120 to north curbline of Grove Street, distance of 
389 feet 
Sheridan Road, both sides, from Minahan Road east to City limits 
South Lake Shore Drive, east side, from the south curbline of Baker Street to the north curbline of Cass 
Street 
South Lake Shore Drive, east side, from the south curbline of Main Street 154 feet south 
South Lake Shore Drive, west side, from the north curbline of Cass Street to Main Street 
South Lake Shore Drive, west side, from the south curbline of Main Street 220 feet south 
Tolman Street, west side, from George Street to Wheeler Street 
Townline Road, north side of the road, in the indented area that is painted yellow and posted "no parking" 
at Veterans Park 
Townline Road, south side of the road eastbound from Veterans Parkway, to area across from service 
driveway to Veterans Park 
Walker Street, north side, from Center Street to William Street 
Warren Street, east side, from Geneva Street to Main Street 
Water Street, south side, from Center Street to Sage Street 
Williams Street, east side, from the north curbline of Henry Street to the south curbline of Gardner Avenue 
Wisconsin Avenue, north side, from Center Street to Elmwood Avenue, except 130 feet east of the east 
curbline of Broad Street 
Wisconsin Street, south side, from the east curbline of Broad Street to 75 feet east 
Wrigley Drive, southwesterly side, from the southernmost point of the bridge existing thereon 
southeasterly to a point 406 feet of the southwesternmost point of intersection of Wrigley Drive and Center 
Street 
 
This subsection shall not apply to physicians on emergency calls or operators of authorized emergency 
vehicles during an emergency, nor to spaces within such areas which are authorized loading zones when 
used for loading or unloading. 
 

1. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage by a majority vote of the members-elect of the Common 
Council and publication/posting as required by law. 

 
Approved by the City of Lake Geneva Common Council on this 23rd day of September, 2019. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 



Ordinance 19-16   Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
  
  Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 

 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                           Date 

 
 
 
 
 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA

PROPOSED 2020 BUDGET

Dated this 28th day of October, 2019.
/S/ Thomas Hartz
Mayor
City of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA
2020 PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET

2019 2020 2019-2020
AMENDED 2019 PROPOSED %

REVENUES: BUDGET PROJECTED BUDGET CHANGE
Taxes:
  General Property Taxes 5,063,166$    5,063,166$    5,277,078$    4.2%
  Other Taxes 729,844         730,209         676,146         -7.4%
Special Assessments 720                720                720                0.0%
Intergovernmental Revenues 1,028,449      1,049,620      1,122,044      9.1%
Licenses and Permits 582,760         603,350         669,300         14.9%
Fines and Forfeitures 164,250         166,775         155,800         -5.1%
Public Charges for Services 682,386         748,602         731,653         7.2%
Interest Earnings 61,000           126,400         81,000           32.8%
Miscellaneous Revenues 55,700           91,133           56,450           1.3%
Net Interfund Transfers 1,312,410      1,359,332      1,512,030      15.2%
Application of Prior Yrs Appropriation 305,000         -                 5,000             -98.4%
TOTAL REVENUES: 9,985,685$    9,939,307$    10,287,221$  3.0%

EXPENDITURES:
General Government 1,619,027$    1,556,995$    1,680,878$    3.8%
Public Safety 5,302,723      5,205,278      5,670,200      6.9%
Public Works 1,938,460      1,912,929      2,046,140      5.6%
Culture, Recreation & Education 365,990         381,579         398,029         8.8%
Conservation & Development 75,770           92,020           19,776           -73.9%
Health Insurance (unallocated) 560,960         270,110         340,477         -39.3%
Contingency 122,755         -                 131,721         7.3%
Net Interfund Transfers -                 335,000         -                 -                 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 9,985,685$    9,753,911$    10,287,221$  3.0%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: -$               185,396$       -$               

Fund Balance - January 1st 4,984,657$    4,984,657$    5,170,053$    

Fund Balance - December 31st 4,984,657$    5,170,053$    5,165,053$    

DEBT SERVICE FUND
REVENUES:

Taxes 908,859         908,859         1,038,175      
Application of Prior Yrs Appropriation 96,087           -                 30,000           
TOTAL REVENUES 1,004,946      908,859         1,068,175      6.3%

EXPENDITURES:
  Principal Retirement 910,000         910,000         935,000         2.7%
  Interest Expense 94,946           95,421           133,175         40.3%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,004,946$    1,005,421$    1,068,175$    6.3%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: -$               (96,562)$        -$               

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
REVENUES (Includes Transfers) 1,002,500$    416,650$       3,770,401$    276.1%
EXPENDITURES 1,002,500      947,500         3,770,401      276.1%
TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: -$               (530,850)$      -$               -                 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND
REVENUES (Includes Transfers)

All Other Revenues 702,990$       745,487$       626,718$       
Application of Prior Yrs Appropriation 615,742$       -$               -$               
TOTAL REVENUES 1,318,732$    745,487$       626,718$       -52.5%

EXPENDITURES 1,318,732$    1,308,732$    601,718$       -54.4%
TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: -$               (563,245)$      25,000$         -                 

IMPACT FEES FUND
REVENUES 12,700$         14,310$         16,150$         27.2%
EXPENDITURES 12,700           -                 16,150           27.2%
TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: -$               14,310$         -$               -                 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
REVENUES (Includes Transfers):

All Other Revenues 3,913,925$    4,006,818$    4,448,974$    
Application of Prior Yrs Appropriation 115,000$       -$               656,636$       
TOTAL REVENUES 4,028,925$    4,006,818$    5,105,610$    26.7%

EXPENDITURES (Includes Transfers) 3,878,925      3,757,345      4,880,610      25.8%
TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: 150,000$       249,473$       225,000$       50.0%

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND
REVENUES 32,000$         80,589$         32,000$         0.0%
EXPENDITURES (Includes Transfers) 13,000           13,000           13,000           0.0%
TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: 19,000$         67,589$         19,000$         -                 

Notice is hereby given that a PUBLIC HEARING will be held, on Monday, November 25, 2019 at 6:00 P.M., in the Council Chambers, at City Hall, 626 
Geneva Street, City of Lake Geneva, on the 2020 PROPOSED MUNICIPAL OPERATING and CAPITAL FUNDS BUDGETS.  A detailed copy of the 
2020 PROPOSED MUNICIPAL OPERATING and CAPITAL FUNDS BUDGET is available for public inspection at the City Clerk's Office in City Hall, 
from 8:30 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. on Monday through Friday.  A copy is also available for public inspection at the Lake Geneva Public Library and on the 
City's website at www.cityoflakegeneva.com.

RESOLUTION 19-R69



2020 PROJECTED FUND BALANCE (ALL CITY FUNDS)

General Debt Capital Equipment Impact Cemetery
Fund Service Projects Replacement Fees Lakefront Parking Cemetery Perp Care Library Tourism

Total Revenues 10,282,221$  1,038,175$    3,770,401$    626,718$       16,150$         1,150,535$    1,901,500$    207,950$       32,000$         737,724$       451,265$       
Total Expenditures 10,287,221$  1,068,175$    3,770,401$    601,718$       16,150$         1,600,535$    1,801,500$    214,450$       13,000$         737,724$       526,401$       
Excess (Deficiency) (5,000)$          (30,000)$        -$               25,000$         -$               (450,000)$      100,000$       (6,500)$          19,000$         -$               (75,136)$        
Balance - January 1, 2020 5,170,053$    31,860$         72,264$         2,017,206$    33,886$         1,134,856$    1,125,000$    125,047$       663,033$       333,913$       298,224$       
Balance - December 31, 2020 5,165,053$    1,860$           72,264$         2,042,206$    33,886$         684,856$       1,225,000$    118,547$       682,033$       333,913$       223,088$       

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED

2019 Budget 2020 Budget Inc/(Dec) Percent
General Fund 5,063,166$    5,277,078$    213,912$       4.22%
Debt Service 908,859$       1,038,175$    129,316$       14.23%
Equipment Replacement 150,000$       150,000$       -$               0.00%
Cemetery 471,656$       485,000$       13,344$         2.83%
Library 677,990$       600,000$       (77,990)$        -11.50%

Totals 7,271,671$    7,550,253$    278,582$       3.83%

TAX RATE PER $1,000 OF 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ASSESSED VALUE FOR CITY PURPOSES: 6.04$             5.96$             5.84$             5.56$             5.42$             

TOTAL PROJECTED OUTSTANDING DEBT - 12/31/19 3,455,000$    



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA

PROPOSED 2020 BUDGET

Dated this 28th day of October, 2019.
/S/ Thomas Hartz
Mayor
City of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA
2020 PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET

2019 2020 2019-2020
AMENDED 2019 PROPOSED %

REVENUES: BUDGET PROJECTED BUDGET CHANGE
Taxes:
  General Property Taxes 5,063,166$    5,063,166$    5,277,078$    4.2% Increase in taxes; transferred some from Eq Replace Fund $<10,000
  Other Taxes 729,844         730,209         676,146         -7.4% Decrease in room taxes for 2020
Special Assessments 720                720                720                0.0% Flat
Intergovernmental Revenues 1,028,449      1,049,620      1,122,044      9.1% Increase in state transportation aids, new video service provider aids; fire dues
Licenses and Permits 582,760         603,350         669,300         14.9% Increase in tourist rooming house permits, building and zoning permits
Fines and Forfeitures 164,250         166,775         155,800         -5.1% Decrease in municipal court fines (old citations collected through SDC)
Public Charges for Services 682,386         748,602         731,653         7.2% Increase in Fire/EMS billing revenues
Interest Earnings 61,000           126,400         81,000           32.8% Increase in estimate of investment earnings due to trend
Miscellaneous Revenues 55,700           91,133           56,450           1.3% Flat
Net Interfund Transfers 1,312,410      1,359,332      1,512,030      15.2% Increase in transfers from parking fund
Application of Prior Yrs Appropriation 305,000         -                 5,000             -98.4% Decrease in use of fund balance for health insurance claims runout
TOTAL REVENUES: 9,985,685$    9,939,307$    10,287,221$  3.0%

EXPENDITURES:
General Government 1,619,027$    1,556,995$    1,680,878$    3.8% Increase in wages; allocation of all benefits
Public Safety 5,302,723      5,205,278      5,670,200      6.9% Increase in wages; allocation of all benefits
Public Works 1,938,460      1,912,929      2,046,140      5.6% Increase in wages; allocation of all benefits
Culture, Recreation & Education 365,990         381,579         398,029         8.8% Increase in wages; allocation of all benefits
Conservation & Development 75,770           92,020           19,776           -73.9% No comprehensive plan in 2020
Health Insurance (unallocated) 560,960         270,110         340,477         -39.3% Decrease due to self-insurance runout costs in 2019
Contingency 122,755         -                 131,721         7.3% Contingency funds used in 2019; original budget was $151,087
Net Interfund Transfers -                 335,000         -                 -                 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 9,985,685$    9,753,911$    10,287,221$  3.0%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: -$               185,396$       -$               

Fund Balance - January 1st 4,984,657$    4,984,657$    5,170,053$    

Fund Balance - December 31st 4,984,657$    5,170,053$    5,165,053$    

DEBT SERVICE FUND
REVENUES:

Taxes 908,859         908,859         1,038,175      
Application of Prior Yrs Appropriation 96,087           -                 30,000           
TOTAL REVENUES 1,004,946      908,859         1,068,175      6.3%

EXPENDITURES:
  Principal Retirement 910,000         910,000         935,000         2.7% Increase in principal retired
  Interest Expense 94,946           95,421           133,175         40.3% Increase in borrowing - 2020 - interest only line of credit
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,004,946$    1,005,421$    1,068,175$    6.3%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: -$               (96,562)$        -$               

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
REVENUES (Includes Transfers) 1,002,500$    416,650$       3,770,401$    276.1%
EXPENDITURES 1,002,500      947,500         3,770,401      276.1% Riviera project - 2020
TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: -$               (530,850)$      -$               -                 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND
REVENUES (Includes Transfers)

All Other Revenues 702,990$       745,487$       626,718$       
Application of Prior Yrs Appropriation 615,742$       -$               -$               
TOTAL REVENUES 1,318,732$    745,487$       626,718$       -52.5%

EXPENDITURES 1,318,732$    1,308,732$    601,718$       -54.4% Decrease in approved eq replace expenditures
TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: -$               (563,245)$      25,000$         -                 

IMPACT FEES FUND
REVENUES 12,700$         14,310$         16,150$         27.2% Increase in estimate of new homes built - 2020
EXPENDITURES 12,700           -                 16,150           27.2%
TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: -$               14,310$         -$               -                 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
REVENUES (Includes Transfers):

All Other Revenues 3,913,925$    4,006,818$    4,448,974$    Increase in parking fees $2 to $3 - 2020
Application of Prior Yrs Appropriation 115,000$       -$               656,636$       
TOTAL REVENUES 4,028,925$    4,006,818$    5,105,610$    26.7%

EXPENDITURES (Includes Transfers) 3,878,925      3,757,345      4,880,610      25.8% Increase in transfer to general fund - 2020
TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: 150,000$       249,473$       225,000$       50.0%

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND
REVENUES 32,000$         80,589$         32,000$         0.0%
EXPENDITURES (Includes Transfers) 13,000           13,000           13,000           0.0%
TOTAL REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES: 19,000$         67,589$         19,000$         -                 

Notice is hereby given that a PUBLIC HEARING will be held, on Monday, November 25, 2019 at 6:00 P.M., in the Council Chambers, at City Hall, 626 
Geneva Street, City of Lake Geneva, on the 2020 PROPOSED MUNICIPAL OPERATING and CAPITAL FUNDS BUDGETS.  A detailed copy of the 
2020 PROPOSED MUNICIPAL OPERATING and CAPITAL FUNDS BUDGET is available for public inspection at the City Clerk's Office in City Hall, 
from 8:30 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. on Monday through Friday.  A copy is also available for public inspection at the Lake Geneva Public Library and on the 
City's website at www.cityoflakegeneva.com.

RESOLUTION R-



2020 PROJECTED FUND BALANCE (ALL CITY FUNDS)

General Debt Capital Equipment Impact Cemetery
Fund Service Projects Replacement Fees Lakefront Parking Cemetery Perp Care Library Tourism

Total Revenues 10,282,221$  1,038,175$    3,770,401$    626,718$       16,150$         1,150,535$    1,901,500$    207,950$       32,000$         737,724$       451,265$       
Total Expenditures 10,287,221$  1,068,175$    3,770,401$    601,718$       16,150$         1,600,535$    1,801,500$    214,450$       13,000$         737,724$       526,401$       
Excess (Deficiency) (5,000)$          (30,000)$        -$               25,000$         -$               (450,000)$      100,000$       (6,500)$          19,000$         -$               (75,136)$        
Balance - January 1, 2020 5,170,053$    31,860$         72,264$         2,017,206$    33,886$         1,134,856$    1,125,000$    125,047$       663,033$       333,913$       298,224$       
Balance - December 31, 2020 5,165,053$    1,860$           72,264$         2,042,206$    33,886$         684,856$       1,225,000$    118,547$       682,033$       333,913$       223,088$       

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED

2019 Budget 2020 Budget Inc/(Dec) Percent
General Fund 5,063,166$    5,277,078$    213,912$       4.22%
Debt Service 908,859$       1,038,175$    129,316$       14.23%
Equipment Replacement 150,000$       150,000$       -$               0.00%
Cemetery 471,656$       485,000$       13,344$         2.83%
Library 677,990$       600,000$       (77,990)$        -11.50%

Totals 7,271,671$    7,550,253$    278,582$       3.83%

TAX RATE PER $1,000 OF 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ASSESSED VALUE FOR CITY PURPOSES: 6.04$             5.96$             5.84$             5.56$             5.42$             

TOTAL PROJECTED OUTSTANDING DEBT - 12/31/19 3,455,000$    



 1 

    

 SCHEDULE OF FEES  
   CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, WISCONSIN 

 
The City of Lake Geneva may retain overpayments of taxes, fees, licenses, and similar 

charges when the overpayment is $2 or less, unless such refund is specifically requested by the 
remitter. 
 

LICENSES & PERMITS 
           Temporary Retailer’s $10.00 Each 
           Provisional/Temp. Operator  (60 days) $15.00 each 
           Operator- 1 Year License (First Time Applicants)  $50.00  

 
           Operator- 2 Year License (Renewal) $75.00 
           Class A Liquor $500.00  
           Class A Beer $100.00 
           Class C Wine $100.00 
           Class B Liquor (Quota License) $500.00 
           Class B Beer $100.00 
           Reserve Class B Liquor $10,000.00 
           Change of Agent $10.00 
           Publication Fee $25.00 
Extension of Premises $25.00 

ANNEXATION FILING FEE – DUE UPON PETITION $200.00 
AMUSEMENTS  
           Coin Operated music machine/juke box $20.00 per machine 
ASSESSMENT REQUEST LETTER              $35.00 each 
BANNER PERMIT $1.00 per banner per day of display 
BUSINESS LICENSE $25.00 Annual 
           Late fee after July 1 $20.00 (in addition to license fee) 
CAT LICENSE  
           Not Spayed/Neutered $8.00 Annual 
              Spayed/Neutered $4.00 Annual 
              Late fee after April 1, or 30 days after adoption    
            of new animal if adoption occurs after April 1 

$5.00 (in addition to license fee) 

DOG LICENSE  
           Not Spayed/Unneutered $30.00 Annual 
            Spayed/Neutered $15.00 Annual 
              Late fee after April 1, or 30 days after adoption of  
           new animal if adoption occurs after April 1 

$5.00 (in addition to license fee) 

BOWLING ALLEY $20.00 per lane 
BILLIARDS OR POOL TABLE $40.00 per table 
CARRIAGE  COMPANY LICENSE $50.00 Annual 
           Each Additional Carriage $25.00 
CLOSING OUT SALE $25.00 event 
CIGARETTE/TOBACCO LICENSE * STATUTORY $100.00 Annual 

Resolution 19-R68 
The Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva does hereby establish the 

following revised schedule of fees, effective October 14, 2019 



 2 

CREAMERY PERMIT $50.00 
DIRECT SELLERS PERMIT $50.00 nonrefundable application fee 
EVENT PERMIT (PER POLICY)  
      PUBLIC ASSEMBLY PERMIT Non-profit organization: No charge 

For-profit organization: $60 per day 
      BLOCK PARTIES OR GAZEBO USE (1 hour Photo Session in Gazebo in 
Flat Iron Park) 

Non-profit organization: No charge 
For-profit organization: $75 

      TIER 1 EVENT Non-profit organization: No charge 
For-profit organization: $250 for an event 
up to seven days, additional $50 per day 

thereafter 
 

      TIER 2 EVENT Non-profit organization: No charge 
For-profit organization: $500 for an event 

up to seven days, additional $100 per 
day thereafter 

MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT  
           Investigation $50.00 Annual 
           Transfer $50.00 
MOBILE HOME PARK LICENSE $100.00 Annual 
PARADE PERMITS $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
BASEBALL TOURNAMENT PERMIT FEE – VETERAN’S PARK $1,000 Security Deposit 
     Friday Rental $150.00 
     Saturday Rental $300.00 
     Sunday Rental $300.00 
PARKING STICKERS  
           Resident & Non-Resident Residence Owners  
           – Lasts 2 years (even)  – 2 hours free parking 

4 free per residence 
each additional $25.00 

           Business Owner 
           – 2 hours free parking 

  $25.00 Lasts 2 years (even) 
$25.00 for 1 year (effective Jan. 1 2017) 

$50.00 (effective Jan. 1, 2018) 
           Walworth County Resident 
            - 2 hours free parking 

$160.00 Lasts 2 years (even) 
$80.00 for 1 year 

           Parking Lot Permit $400.00 Annual   
PARKING RATES  
           Parking Stall Rate for stalls on Wrigley Dr.,  
          10 stalls at the boat launch, stalls on lower Center St.  
          south of Main St., stalls on lower Broad St. south of  
          Main St., 700 & 800 blocks of Main St., and Center St. 
          Parking Lot  
          All other Parking Stalls Rate 

$2.00 per hour 
 
 
 
 

$1.00 per hour 
           Parking Meter Bags/Contractor Permits $10.00 administrative fee 

$25.00 deposit per locked bag 
March 1 – Nov 14: $20.00 daily per bag 

Nov 15 – Feb 29: $10.00 daily per bag 
PARKING TICKETS     
           Expired Stall (Over 2 hours; Over 5 hours; Over 25 min.) $20.00 
           More than 3 motorcycles $20.00 
           Improper Use or Display of Sticker $20.00 

Deleted: $25 



 3 

           Backed into parking stall $25.00 
           Compact Car Only $25.00 
           No Parking Zone $25.00 
           Over the Line $25.00 
           Parking by fire hydrant $40.00 
           Handicap Zone $150.00 
           Parking with Trailer or Trailer alone in Sage Lot D $25.00 
           Parking any Vehicle without a Trailer or with an  
           occupied Trailer in Boat Launch Parking Lot F  

$25.00 

LATE FEES     
           Expired Stall After 10 days $40.00 
           More than 3 motorcycles After 10 days $40.00 
           Backed into parking stall After 10 days $50.00 
           Compact Car Only After 10 days $50.00 
           No Parking Zone After 10 days $50.00 
           Parking by fire hydrant $80.00 
           Handicap Zone  $300.00 
           Second Collection Letter Fee $6.00 
           Vehicle Suspension Release Fee $20.00 
  
PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS * STATUTORY  
           Photocopies 
           (can include hourly wage for gathering data) 

$0.25 per page 

RADON TEST KIT $10.00 
REISSUE CHECK FEE $25.00 
RETURNED CHECK FEE (NSF) $30.00 each 
ROOM TAX LICENSE $10.00 Annual 
SHOWS, CIRCUS, CARNIVALS  
           Circus $50.00 per day 
           Tent Show – Day 1 $15.00 
           Tent Show – Each Additional Day $10.00 
           All Other $2.00 per day 
SIDEWALK CAFÉ PERMIT $15.00 per seat Annual 
  
STREET USE PERMIT $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
           Up to two days                         $40.00 
           More than two days $100.00 
TAX EXEMPT REPORT FILING (every other year) $20.00 
              Late Fee $20.00 
TAXI CAB COMPANY LICENSE $50.00 Annual 
           Each Additional Car $25.00 
TAXI CAB DRIVER LICENSE $25.00 Annual 
THEATER LICENSE  
           Up to 1,200 seats $200.00 
           Over 1,200 seats $275.00 
TOURIST ROOMING/SHORT-TERM RENTAL LICENSE $2,000.00 Annual 
TRAPPING PERMIT $25.00 Annual 
CITY HALL MEETING ROOM RENT                $25 per event 



 4 

  
 
 
 

LAKEFRONT 
BEACH 
(Open Memorial Day thru Labor Day –  
  no glass containers allowed) 

 

           Children age 6 and under Free 
           Children age 7-12                        $4.00 per day 
           Ages 13 to Adult                         $8.00 per day 
Resident Beach Tags (Maximum 6 per Household) $3.00 per tag 
Seasonal Pass Adult 13 and up                      $80.00 per year 
Seasonal Pass Child 7-12               $40.00 per year 
     Beach Bathrooms – Opening/Cleaning Hourly Rate 
BOAT LAUNCH PERMIT  
     One-Time Launch Resident Non-Resident 
           Non-Trailer Non-Motor $7.00 $8.00 
           Less than 20 feet $10.00 $11.00 
           20 feet to 25 feet 11 inches $14.00 $21.00 
           26 feet and over $16.00 $24.00 
     Season Launch Permit  Resident Non-Resident 
           Non-Trailer Non-Motor $70.00 $80.00 
           Less than 20 feet $100.00 $110.00 
           20 feet to 25 feet 11 inches $140.00 $210.00 
           26 feet and over $160.00 $240.00 
COMMERCIAL BOAT LAUNCH PERMIT $1,000 per year (unlimited launches) 
ANNUAL WEST END PIER SLIP, LAGOON SLIP, BUOY, DINGHY, 
KAYAK AND PADDLEBOARD RACK LEASE PERMITS  

Rates may change on an annual basis by the 
Common Council 

      WEST-END PIER 24’ SLIP  
             Resident $1,774.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $2,661.00 
             Non-Resident $3,547.00 
      WEST-END PIER 26’ SLIP  
             Resident $2,070.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $3,015.00 
             Non-Resident $3,842.00 
      LAGOON SLIP & BUOY   
             Resident $764.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $1,272.00 
             Non-Resident $1,774.00 
      DINGHY, KAYAK, & PADDLEBOARD RACKS  
             Resident $131.00 
             Non- Resident Property Owner $191.00 
             Non-Resident $262.00 
BUOY/SLIP RATES ESTABLISHED ANNUALLY BY RESOLUTION  $30.00 per year 
           Season Launch Pass for Kayaks, Canoes and 
           Paddleboards (non-trailer, non-motor) 

 

RIVIERA RENTALS (ALL CONFERENCES/CONVENTIONS & WEDDINGS HELD 
NOVEMBER 15 THROUGH APRIL 30) 

 



 5 

           Maximum attendees is 380 
           Security Deposit  $1,000.00    
           Resident Rental Fee  (Friday, Saturday, Sunday)    $2,500.00 
           Non-Resident Rental Fee  (Friday, Saturday, Sunday) $3,000.00 
           Resident & Non-Resident Weekday Rental Fee  
          (Monday - Thursday) 

$500.00 

           Not-for-Profit Group Rental Fee $400.00 
           Per Hour Set Up Fee $20.00 per hour 
           Security Guards for Event (2) Additional Renter Expense - Hourly Rate 
           Extra Security Guard over 250 attendees Additional Renter Expense - Hourly Rate 
RIVIERA RENTALS (WEDDINGS HELD MAY THROUGH NOVEMBER 15) 
           Maximum attendees is 380 

 

           Security Deposit $1,000.00 
           Resident Rental Fee (Monday - Thursday) $625.00 
           Resident Rental Fee (Friday & Sunday- Non-Holiday) $1,700.00 
           Resident Rental Fee (Saturday) $1,950.00 
           Non-Resident Rental Fee (Monday- Thursday) $1,250.00 
           Non-Resident Rental Fee (Friday & Sunday- Non-Holiday) $3,400.00 
           Non- Resident Rental Fee (Saturday) $3,900.00 
  

 

BUILDING & ZONING  

Building  

Minimum permit fee for all building permits Residential $60.00 
Commercial $100.00 

Residential Construction:  

            One & Two family & attached garage (new,  
            addition and alterations) 

$0.31 / sq. ft. 
New Single Family Construction 

$1,000.00 Minimum 
            Accessory buildings & garages  $0.25 / sq. ft. 

            Decks  $0.15 / sq. ft., or $60.00 Minimum 

            Roofing and Siding $60.00 

Commercial Construction:  

Residences - Apartments, Three family & over, Row Housing, 
Multiple Family Dwellings, Institutional (new, addition and 
alterations) 

$0.31 / sq. ft. 
New Commercial Construction 

 $1,500.00 Minimum 
Local Business, Office Building (new, addition or alteration) $0.30/ sq. ft. 

Manufacturing or Industrial (new, addition or alteration)  $0.30 / sq. ft. 

Commercial , structures, alterations, residing, reroofing, 
repairs, where square footage cannot be calculated 

$10.00 / $1,000.00 valuation 

Plan Examination:  

            One and Two Family Residence $150.00 

            Apartments, Three Family Residence, Row 
            Housing, Multiple family Building 

$150.00 plus $10.00 /unit 
 



 6 

            State Approved Plans 
Commercial, Industrial, Institutional & Additions 
            State Approved Plans 

$350.00 
 

            Heating Plans, Energy Calculations, or Lighting 
            Plans submitted separately 

$125.00/ Plan 

 Additions, Alterations to 1 & 2 Family Dwellings $75.00 

            Accessory building over 240 sq. ft., and decks for 
            1 & 2 family dwellings 

$40.00 

Wisconsin Uniform Building Permit Seal $45.00 

Occupancy Permit  
 

$60.00/Residential 
$100.00/Commercial & Industrial 

Temporary (6 months or less Commercial only) $75.00 

Permit Renewal (6 month extension or less) $200.00 Commercial  
$50 Residential 

Heating and Air Conditioning:  

Heating and Air Conditioning Distribution Systems  $3.00/ 100 sq. ft. of conditioned area 
with a minimum fee of $60.00 

New Residential Heating 
 
 
Replacement Residential Heating 
 
Commercial New or Replacement Heating 

$125.00 first unit, $60.00 each additional 
unit. 

 
$60.00 / unit 

 
$150.00/ unit, up to and including 

150,000 BTU units. Additional fee of 
$20.00 / each 50,000 BTU fraction thereof 

up to a maximum of $900.00 / unit. 
Residential Air Conditioning – Other than Wall Units (new or 
replacement) 
 

$60.00 / unit 
 

Commercial Air Conditioning - Other than Wall Units (new or 
replacement) 

 
$150.00/ unit up to 5tons or 60,000 

BTU's. Additional fee of $20.00 each ton 
or 12,000 BTU's or fraction thereof up to 

a maximum of $900.00 / unit 
Permanently installed Wall unit (example – Fireplace, wall pack) $60.00 / unit 

Commercial/Industrial Exhaust Hoods and Exhaust Systems $75.00  

Plumbing Permit:  

Fixture Count $15.00/ fixture, drain or device, 
 $60.00 Minimum 

Water Main $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main, $60.00 Minimum   

 
Sanitary Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   

private water main, / $9.00 per 
manhole$60.00 Minimum 

Storm Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   



 7 

private water main / $12.00 per manhole 
or basin $60.00 Minimum 

Exterior Grease Trap $100.00 

Electrical:  

Residential Minimum $60.00 minimum.  
 

New Residential Service $100.00/ Service First 200 Amps,  
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Sanitary Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main,  $60.00 minimum & 

/ $9.00 per manhole. 
Residential Service Update $100.00/ Service 

Residential Sub-Panel $50.00/ Panel 

Residential Generator $75.00 (includes gas piping) 

Temporary Electrical Service $100.00 up to 200 Amps. 
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Electrical Minimum $150.00 Minimum 

Commercial Electrical Re-Inspections $150.00/ Inspection 

Commercial Service ( New or Update) $150.00 First 200 Amps,  
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Sub-Panel $50.00 First 100 Amps,  
$10.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Generator $150.00 (included gas piping) 

Commercial Low Voltage $1.00/ Device, $100.00 Minimum 

Commercial Exterior Light Fixture Replacement $100.00 per site 

Residential Electrical Permit - for minor installations with fees 
not exceeding $5.00, the permit fee may be waived by the 
inspector.  
Commercial Electrical Permit - for minor installations with 
fees not exceeding $5.00, the permit fee may be waived by the 
inspector. 

$0.10 / sq. ft. of area served,   
$60.00 minimum. 

 
$0.10 / sq. ft. of area served,  

$150.00 minimum. 

Erosion control fees:  

            New One and Two Family Buildings $125.00 / lot 

            One and Two Family Additions and Accessory 
            Structures 

$50.00 

            Multi-Family Residential, Commercial, Industrial  
            and Institutional 

 $175.00/Building, plus $5.00/1,000 sq. 
ft. disturbed lot area up to $2,000.00 max. 

            Other $40.00 

Zoning  

Zoning Permit $60.00 

Temporary Use (per Section 98-906) $60.00 

Zoning Verification Letter $60.00 



 8 

Sign Permit (per Section 98-907) $60.00 minimum or $0.35/ sq ft of sign 
area 

Early Start Permit to start construction $125.00 (1-2 family) 
$250.00 (all others) 

Fuel Tanks $75.00 administrative fee/ tank for 
installation or removal 

Wrecking or Razing- Building Inspector may waive the fee if 
the structure is condemned 

$100.00 ( One or two family residences 
and accessory Structure over 250 sq ft) 

Commercial/ Industrial Razing $350.00 

Moving buildings over public right-of-ways $250.00 plus $0.03/ sq ft 

Special Inspections and Reports $150.00/ inspection report 

Text Amendment (per Section 98-902) $400.00 

Zoning Map Amendment (per Section 98-903) $400.00 

Certified Survey Map (CSM) For each new Residential Lot Created: 
$400.00 

For each new Commercial Lot Created: 
$200.00 

Plat Renewal $150.00 

Conditional Use (per Section 98-905) $400.00 
$100.00 

Site Plan (per Section 98-908) $400.00 

Variance (per Section 98-910) $400.00 

Interpretation (per Section 98-911) $150.00 

Appeal (per Section 98-912) $400.00 

PD Zoning Map Amendment (Includes 1 PIP Review) $750.00 

PIP Review $400.00 

Filing or Recording fee with City Clerk, plus actual recording 
fee 

$10.00 

Triple Fees: Upon failure to obtain a permit before work on a 
building has been started, except in emergency cases, the total 
fee shall be triple the total fees charged. 

 

NOTE: Fees shall be charged on gross square footage defined 
as follows: 

• The exterior dimensions, including attached 
garage and each floor level 

 

NOTE: In determining costs, all construction shall be included 
with the exception of heating, air conditioning, electrical or 
plumbing work. 

 

NOTE: All fee amounts shall be rounded up to the next full 
dollar amount. 

 

NOTE: An additional fee for plan review may be assessed at 
the time of application for renewal of the permit. 

 

* Base fee may be modified by Subsection (4) of Section 98-935, Fees of the Zoning Code 

 



 9 

CEMETERY FEES 
Opening Grave – Weekdays (Full Burial) $675.00 
Opening Grave - Saturdays (Full Burial) $800.00 
Opening Grave – Weekdays (Cremation) $450.00 
Opening Grave – Saturdays (Cremation) $525.00 
Two cremations buried in same grave at one time $100.00 extra charge 
Opening Grave – Weekdays - Baby Under 1 Year   $200.00 
Opening Grave – Saturdays - Baby Under 1 Year  $300.00 
Grave (50% Perpetual Care) $650.00 
Grave – Single Cremation (50% Perpetual Care) $400.00 
Grave – Double Cremation (50% Perpetual Care) $500.00 
Columbarium Niche (includes opening & inurnment)  
($200 Perpetual Care) 

 $1,200.00 
$1,000.00 bottom row 

2nd Inurnment if Niche allows for two $150.00 additional 
Niche Door Inscriptions $240.00 
Frost Charges (November 1 to March 15) $75.00 
Stake Out Fee for Foundations $50.00 
Foundation Charges $0.40 per square inch 
Use of Cemetery for Functions 20% of Gross Receipts 

POLICE DEPARTMENT FEES 
FINGERPRINTING  
          City Residents $15.00 
          Individuals employed in business in city limits  
          or working for city licensed business 

 
$15.00 

          Non-Residents $60.00 

PUBLIC WORKS FEES 
CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FEE  
          Curb Cut/Driveway Approach Fee  
          Right-of-Way Excavation Fee $25.00 
          Storm Sewer Connection Fee $25.00 
          Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee $25.00 
Special brush, limb and refuse pick-up $25.00 
Dumpster Delivery $24.00 per 15 minutes 
Dumpster Pick-up $50.00 per dumpster 
 $50.00 plus additional landfill fees 

 
 
 
 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES 

Fees for Apparatus and Personnel 1 hour minimum 
and fractions 

thereafter 
on hourly rates 



 10 

unless stated 
otherwise 

Chief, Deputy Chief or Assistant Chief $26.00/hr. 
Fire and EMS Personnel $26.00/hr. 
Engine/Squad $550.00/hr. 
Truck (aerial apparatus) $875.00/hr. 
Brush Truck $300.00/hr. 
Air Boat $300.00/hr. 
Technical Rescue and Utility $500.00/hr. 
Chief, Deputy Chief, Assistant Chief, or Command Vehicle $50.00/hr. 
Utility $50.00/hr. 
Ambulance $270.00/hr. 
Paramedic Intercept Fee (Option a OR b)  

a.  Flat Rate Billed to Requesting Municipality $400.00 
b.  Shared Revenue from Requesting Municipality 50% Monies 

Received 
EMS First Responder and Transport Fees   

Residents Fee $150.00 per call 
Non-Resident Fee $200.00 per call 

Ambulance Transport Fee Schedule   
Advanced Life Support Base Rate $918.89 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (ALS2) $1010.47 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (Intercept) $918.89 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (Intercept ALS2) $1010.47 
Equal Level Staffing Mutual Aid $300.00 
Basic Life Support Base Rate $700.00 
Mileage Charge $20.00 per mile 
Supplies used fee   

Defibrillation $100.00 
EKG Monitoring $150.00 
Spinal Immobilization $150.00 
I/O Needle & Associated Supplies $200.00 
Airway Placement $150.00 
Oxygen & Associated Supplies $100.00 
IV & Associated Supplies $150.00 
CPAP Disposable $150.00 
Epi 1:1,000 $35.00 
Nitro Tabs $22.00 
Albuterol/Ventolin $30.00 
Glucagon $211.00 
Narcan $48.00 



 11 

ASA $32.00 
Dextrose 25gms/50cc $32.00 
Glucose $10.50 
CO2 Monitor Nasal/Tube $40.00 
Oil Dry $10.00 per bag 
Class A, B, or AB Firefighting Foam $30.00/gallon 
BLS Supplies Used $75.00 
ALS Supplies Used $125.00 

Paramedic Medications  
Adenocard $31.00 
Amiodorone $125.00 
Atropine $37.00 
Calcium Chloride $43.00 
Dextrose 5% $32.00 
Diltiazem $9.00 
Diphenhydramine $5.00 
Epi 1:10,000 $16.00 
Etomidate $94.00 
Heparin $32.00 
Ketamine $54.00 
Lidocaine $36.00 
Magnesium Sulfate $7.00 
Methylprednisolone $101.00 
Metoprolol $9.00 
Midazolam $68.00 
Norepinephrine $22.00 
Ondansteron $28.00 
Sodium Bicarbinate $37.00 
Sublimaze $5.00 
Succinylcholine $41.00 
Clopidogral $19.00 
Dopamine $97.00 
Hydromorphone $10.00 
Hydroxycobalamin $1270.00 
Metoclopromide $5.00 
Morphine Sulfate $56.00 
Trananexamic Acid $96.00 

Fees Relating To Permits Required  

           Fire pit burn permit 
$15.00 each fire or 

$50.00 yr 
           Fireworks permit $50.00 
           Burning permits $50.00 
           Key box processing fee $10.00 
           Operational Permit $75.00 
Fees Relating To Fire Protection Systems  



 12 

Basic system Review  
Fee is charged for systems without hydraulic calcs 

                    $250 

Fire Sprinkler, Fire Control and/or Fire Suppression system plan 
review with one set of hydraulic calculations.  (Fee is charged for 
each separate floor and /or area of building per system and 
review.) 

$300.00 

Verifications of  Additional Hydraulic Calcs 
(fee is charged for each additional set of hydraulic calculations 
required by the AHJ) 

$175.00 

Additional review of same system.  (Fee applies to all re-
submittals.) 

       $300 

 Site inspection during installation 
2 hour minimum Note: system may not be concealed prior to 
inspection.  Inspections are required for all systems. 

$75.00/hr. 

Modifications to existing systems  
   Min. fee per system without hydraulic calcs $75.00 
   Fee per sprinkler up to 15 sprinklers w/o calcs $20.00 ea. 
   Fee per sprinkler up to 15 with calcs $200.00 
   Fire Pumps per review $300.00 
Fire prevention inspection fee schedule:  
Residential Building Type:  

   4 to 36 units 
 $10 per unit per 

year 
   37 to 60 units  $400 per year 
   61 to 99 units  $450 per year 
   100 units and above  $500 per year 
Commercial:  
   Under 1,000 square feet  $50 
   1,000 to 4,999 square feet  $100 
   5,000 to 24,999 square feet  $150 
   25,000 to 99,000 square feet  $200 
   100,000 to 174,999 square feet  $400 
   175,000 to 249,999 square feet  $700 
Industrial:  
   Under 5,000 square feet  $100 
   5,000 to 24,999 square feet  $200 
   25,000 to 99,000 square feet  $300 
   100,000 to 174,999 square feet  $500 
   175,000 to 349,999 square feet  $800 
Additional conditions: 
(a) The fee for hotels and motels shall be the same as for 
residential property, except that the fee shall be calculated on a 
per room basis. 
(b) Square footage refers to the total floor area of any building or 
structure. 
(c) Inspection fees shall be charged to the property owner. Any 
fees unpaid by November 1 of each year shall be entered upon the 
tax roll as a special charge against the property and all 
proceedings in relation to the collection, return, and sale of the 

 

https://www.ecode360.com/14136054#14136054
https://www.ecode360.com/14136055#14136055
https://www.ecode360.com/14136056#14136056


 13 

property for delinquent real estate taxes, shall apply to the 
inspection fee. 
Sprinkler system underground mains  
   0-200 feet $75.00 
   201-999 feet $125.00 
   1000 or more                 $300 
Fire hose standpipe connections $15.00 each 
Other fire protection systems (hood, wet & dry chem.)                    $300 
Fire alarm systems per control panel $250.00 
Fire Alarm system manual pull stations, initiating devices; this 
includes smoke, heat, flame, ionization, photoelectric detectors, 
water flow devices and all monitoring devices per review. 

$50.00 up to 3 
$10 each additional 

Witness of all required tests – 2 hour minimum           $150/hr. 
Inspection during installation $75.00/hr. 
Fire protection Consulting on systems and or for occupancies or 
permits 

$75.00/hr. 
1 Hour Minimum 

 
Adopted this 14th day of October, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Thomas Hartz, Mayor                                     Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                    Date 
       
 



















1224 South Pine Street 

Burlington, WI 53105 

T: 262.767.2747 •  F: 262.767.2750 
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM TO THE CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
To:  Tom Earle 

From: Wyatt Ploetz 

Date: October 11, 2019 

Re: Pay Request #2 for Payne & Dolan, Inc. 
2019 Street Improvement Program 

 

 

A review of the Request for Payment No. 2 from Payne & Dolan, Inc. for the 2019 Street Improvement Program contract has 

been completed. This pay request includes all work completed and measured to date. 

 

Payment in the amount of $423,688.82 for this payment request has been recommended for approval by the Construction 

Manager on site. 

 

This payment also corrects a minor error of $0.02 that was paid extra on Payment No. 1, making this payment $0.02 less than 

what is shown in the included Payment Tab dated 9/24/19. The final payment for the project will be checked for any 

subsequent rounding errors that may occur. 

 

The Contractor’s documents are enclosed for the City’s approval. 

 

Payment amounts are broken up as follows: 

 

2019 Street Improvement Program: 
      New Invoice  Previously 

                      Amount     Invoiced   Total 

 

Invoiced       $    445,988.23  $      211,801.65           $    657,789.88 

Retainage     ($      22,299.41)                 ($      10,590.08)          ($     32,889.49) 

Total Approved for Payment    $    423,688.82  $      201,211.57           $   624,900.39 

 

 

Contract Base Bid:                             $684,528.66 

 

 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 

 

Please send Payment to:  

 

Payne & Dolan, Inc.  
P.O. Box 781  

Waukesha, WI 53187-0781 

 

  

 









#1 #2 #3 #4

204.0100 Removing Pavement (Concrete Driveway) SY 5  $               40.00  $               200.00                    86.30 -                      -                      -                      86.30 3,452.00$           

204.0120

Removing Asphaltic Surface Milling (Partial 

Depth 2") SY 34565  $                 2.36  $          81,573.40                         -   30,674.43           -                      -                      30674.43 72,391.65$          

204.0120

Removing Asphaltic Surface Milling (Partial 

Depth 3") SY 2414  $                 3.41  $            8,231.74                         -   1,542.00             -                      -                      1542.00 5,258.22$           

204.0150 Removing Curb & Gutter (ADA Ramps) LF 877  $               13.61  $          11,935.97                  701.60 -                      -                      -                      701.60 9,548.78$           

204.0150

Removing Curb & Gutter (Exhibit "A" 

Streets) LF 1630  $                 9.00  $          14,670.00               1,162.50 -                      -                      -                      1162.50 10,462.50$          

205.0100 Excavation Common CY 100  $               31.90  $            3,190.00                         -   251.40                -                      -                      251.40 8,019.66$           

205.0155 Removing Concrete Sidewalk SY 606  $               17.20  $          10,423.20                  506.60 -                      -                      -                      506.60 8,713.52$           

305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch Ton 317  $               23.50  $            7,449.50                  299.71 493.50                -                      -                      793.21 18,640.44$          

416.0160 Concrete Driveway 6-inch SY 5  $               93.00  $               465.00                    16.80 -                      -                      -                      16.80 1,562.40$           

460.5224

HMA Pavement Type 4 LT 58-28 S 

(460.5224), Item also includes asphaltic 

material PG 58-28 (455.0220) and asphaltic 

material for tack coat (455.0605). Includes 

shouldering and restoration. Ton 3943  $               66.49  $        262,170.07                         -   3,744.50             -                      -                      3744.50 248,971.81$        

601.0110

Concrete Curb & Gutter 24-Inch Type D 

(ADA Ramps) LF 86  $               37.00  $            3,182.00                    86.00 -                      -                      -                      86.00 3,182.00$           

601.0110

Concrete Curb & Gutter 24-Inch Type D 

(Exhibit "A" Streets) LF 1120  $               37.00  $          41,440.00                  593.10 -                      -                      -                      593.10 21,944.70$          

601.0411

Concrete Curb & Gutter 30-Inch Type D 

(ADA Ramps) LF 791  $               37.00  $          29,267.00                  592.00 45.00                  -                      -                      637.00 23,569.00$          

601.0411

Concrete Curb & Gutter 30-Inch Type D 

(Exhibit "A" Streets) LF 630  $               37.00  $          23,310.00                  593.00 -                      -                      -                      593.00 21,941.00$          

602.0405 Concrete Sidewalk 4-Inch SF 5327  $                 6.95  $          37,022.65               4,662.88 281.00                -                      -                      4943.88 34,359.97$          

602.0505 Curb Ramp Detectable Warning Field Yellow SF 500  $               60.00  $          30,000.00                  432.00 4.00                    -                      -                      436.00 26,160.00$          

611.8110 Adjusting Manholes Covers (Undistributed) EACH 54  $             131.18  $            7,083.72                         -   -                      -                      -                      0.00 -$                    

611.8110

Adjusting Manholes Covers-Steel Rings 

(Undistributed) EACH 20  $             207.70  $            4,154.00                         -   1.00                    -                      -                      1.00 207.70$              

611.8115 Adjusting Inlet Covers EACH 4  $             900.00  $            3,600.00                         -   -                      -                      -                      0.00 -$                    

628.7010 Inlet Protection Type B EACH 5  $               45.00  $               225.00                         -   -                      -                      -                      0.00 -$                    

628.7015 Inlet Protection Type C EACH 62  $               55.00  $            3,410.00                         -   48.00                  -                      -                      48.00 2,640.00$           

646.6120 Marking Stop Line Epoxy 18-inch LF 215  $               16.00  $            3,440.00                         -   194.00                -                      -                      194.00 3,104.00$           

646.7420 Marking Crosswalk Epoxy 6-inch LF 840  $               13.00  $          10,920.00                         -   1,710.00             -                      -                      1710.00 22,230.00$          

SPV.0060.01 Adjusting Valve Boxes (Undistributed) EACH 30  $               32.80  $               984.00                         -   -                      -                      -                      0.00 -$                    

SPV.0105.01 Traffic Control LS 1  $        41,950.37  $          41,950.37                      0.50 0.50                    -                      -                      1.00 41,950.37$          

SPV.0180.01

Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes Topsoil 

(625.0100), Fertilizer Type A (629.0205), 

Seeding Mix No. 40 (630.0140). SY 200.0  $               30.45  $            6,090.00                         -   633.30                -                      -                      633.30 19,283.99$          

2019 STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM, BASE BID:
Qty to 

Date
$ Paid to Date

PAYMENT TAB, DATED: 9/24/19

                Kapur & Associates,  Inc.                                               

2019 STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin

Bid Opening: May 30, 2019 10:00 AM

 Subtotal, Base - Paid to Date SUBTOTAL BASE BID  $                                 646,387.62 

Item No. Item Description Unit Bid Qty  Bid Unit $  Bid Total $
Quantity per Estimate

607,593.69$                     



#1 #2 #3 #4

204.0150 Removing Curb & Gutter LF 75  $                 9.00  $               675.00                    77.00 -                      -                      -                      77.00 693.00$              

205.0100 Excavation Common CY 25  $               31.90  $               797.50                         -   25.00                  -                      -                      25.00 797.50$              

305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch Ton 30  $               23.50  $               705.00                    30.00 -                      -                      -                      30.00 705.00$              

416.0160 Concrete Driveway 6-inch SY 50  $               93.00  $            4,650.00                    52.70 -                      -                      -                      52.70 4,901.10$           

460.5224

HMA Pavement Type 4 LT 58-28 S 

(460.5224), Item also includes asphaltic 

material PG 58-28 (455.0220) and asphaltic 

material for tack coat (455.0605). Includes 

shouldering and restoration Ton 5  $             429.08  $            2,145.40                         -   27.01                  -                      -                      27.01 11,589.45$          

601.0407 Concrete Curb & Gutter 18-Inch Type D LF 35  $               37.00  $            1,295.00                    34.00 -                      -                      -                      34.00 1,258.00$           

601.0411 Concrete Curb & Gutter 30-Inch Type D LF 40  $               37.00  $            1,480.00                    43.00 -                      -                      -                      43.00 1,591.00$           

601.0600 Concrete Curb Pedestrian LF 164  $               37.00  $            6,068.00                  185.60 22.00                  -                      -                      207.60 7,681.20$           

SPV.0105.01 Traffic Control LS 1  $             809.98  $               809.98                      0.50 0.50                    -                      -                      1.00 809.98$              

SPV.0180.01

Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes Topsoil 

(625.0100), Fertilizer Type A (629.0205), 

Seeding Mix No. 40 (630.0140). SY 20  $               30.45  $               609.00                         -   15.10                  -                      -                      15.10 459.80$              

#1 #2 #3 #4

204.0100 Removing Pavement (Concrete Driveway) SY 25  $               40.00  $            1,000.00                    32.90 -                      -                      -                      32.90 1,316.00$           

204.0120

Removing Asphaltic Surface Milling (Partial 

Depth 3") SY 720  $                 4.79  $            3,448.80                         -   750.00                -                      -                      750.00 3,592.50$           

204.0150 Removing Curb & Gutter LF 27  $                 9.00  $               243.00                    30.50 -                      -                      -                      30.50 274.50$              

205.0100 Excavation Common CY 30  $               31.90  $               957.00                         -   -                      -                      -                      0.00 -$                    

305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch Ton 15  $               23.50  $               352.50                    15.00 20.17                  -                      -                      35.17 826.50$              

416.0160 Concrete Driveway 6-Inch SY 20  $               93.00  $            1,860.00                    32.00 -                      -                      -                      32.00 2,976.00$           

460.5224

HMA Pavement Type 4 LT 58-28 S 

(460.5224), Item also includes asphaltic 

material PG 58-28 (455.0220) and asphaltic 

material for tack coat (455.0605). Includes 

shouldering and restoration
Ton 126  $               70.49  $            8,881.74                         -   128.26                -                      -                      128.26 9,041.05$           

601.0411 Concrete Curb & Gutter 30-inch Type D LF 27  $               37.00  $               999.00                    30.50 -                      -                      -                      30.50 1,128.50$           

SPV.0105.01 Traffic Control LS 1  $             555.12  $               555.12                      0.50 0.50                    -                      -                      1.00 555.12$              

SPV.0180.01

Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes Topsoil 

(625.0100), Fertilizer Type A (629.0205), 

Seeding Mix No. 40 (630.0140). SY 20  $               30.45  $               609.00                         -   -                      -                      -                      0.00 -$                    

 $    211,801.63  $    445,988.25  $                   -    $                   -   

 $     (10,590.08)  $     (22,299.41)  $                   -    $                   -   

 $    201,211.55  $    423,688.84  $                   -    $                   -   

 Subtotal $ per Estimate 

 Retainage per Estimate 

 Total to be Paid per Estimate 

Less - Retainage

 $                                   18,906.16  Subtotal, Add'l Bid #2 - Paid to Date 

Park N Ride - MANDATORY ADDITIONAL BID #1:

Item No. Item Description Unit Bid Qty

TOTAL - Paid to Date, Less Retainage

(32,889.49)$                

624,900.39$               

 $                          684,528.66 TOTAL BASE BID 657,789.88$                TOTAL BASE BID - Paid to Date 

Item No. Item Description Unit Bid Qty

SUBTOTAL - ADDITIONAL BID #2

 Subtotal, Add'l Bid #1 - Paid to Date SUBTOTAL - ADDITIONAL BID #1  $                                   19,234.88 30,486.03$                       

19,710.16$                       

 Bid Unit $  Bid Total $

 Bid Unit $  Bid Total $

Quantity per Estimate Qty to 

Date
$ Paid to Date

Clover-Maxwell Alley - MANDATORY ADDITIONAL BID #2:

Quantity per Estimate Qty to 

Date
$ Paid to Date



Job Title: 
Beach Attendant 

Represented: No 
Reports to Beach Lead 

Department: 
Public Works 

Status / Wage: Seasonal  

Adopted by City Council Draft, 2019 
  

Job Description 

Position Overview: 
This position is under the immediate direction of the Beach Lead and responsible for a variety of tasks within 
the city’s Lakefront.  “Lakefront” is defined as all City of Lake Geneva owned property and buildings located 
along Geneva Lake between the west end fishing pier, up to Baker Park (excluding Seminary Park). 
 

Essential Job Functions: 

• Responsible for making sure the boardwalk, west pier and fishing pier are clear and in compliance with 
ADA requirements. 
 

•  Beach Pay stations: 
-Beach attendants monitor and assist customers with pay station transactions including parking meters 
-Resupply receipt paper and performs minor maintenance of beach pay station 
-Maintain visibility in the City, interacting with the public, providing answers to questions about beach                   
  and or other information about the area; including parking meters on Wrigley Drive 
 

• Checking beach passes: 
     -Greet visitors in a polite, friendly and helpful manner answering customers' questions  

-Be able to understand all policies and regulations of the beach and be able to explain them pleasantly 
-Verify and check-in current beach passes  
-Read the beach pass receipt and give accurate change that is due  
-Provide refund upon receipt 
-Put on wristbands  
-Perform locker procedures & $1.00 rental transactions 
 

• Beach monitoring 
-Monitor beach activity for smoking, alcohol, and illegal beach entrance 
-Identify any bags that are “coolers”; remove any glass or alcohol in the coolers 

 

• Beach and facilities maintenance 
-Set up workstations including chairs or equipment needed 
-Keep work areas clean  
-Responsible for recognizing and addressing any other items along the lake front that may need attention       

                 such as removing sea weed and other debris. 
-Ensure the following facilities are inspected, cleaned and maintained (on, a minimum, hourly basis):         
    West End restrooms, Library restrooms, Riviera restrooms, beach house and Visitor Center restrooms.   
    As well as hourly trash pick-up from the “west end fishing pier” to the municipal boat launch.  In the       
    course of inspecting the lake front, beach staff are also responsible for reporting any safety hazards or   
    illegal activity they may observe to immediate supervisor 

 



• Responsible for ensuring  the beach house is maintained as it relates to janitorial duties including but not 
limited to:  keeping beach house stocked with toilet paper, hand towels, replacement of burned out light 
bulbs, sweeping, minor painting, minor maintenance, mopping / washing of any spills, emptying of full 
garbage containers, flushing toilets, cleaning mirrors, unplugging of toilets.  For those items staff is not 
equipped to repair; staff must report all outstanding issues to the Beach Lead immediately. 
 

• Qualifications;  
-At least 17 years old  
-Ability to carry out all tasks listed above 
-Reading and math skills at high school level 
 

 

 

NOTE:  This job description is not intended to be all-inclusive.  Employee may perform other duties as assigned 
to meet the ongoing needs of the organization.   This position will be seasonal position with the City of Lake 
Geneva.    
 

 

 

 

 

Draft.   Last revision October 3, 2019 



Job Title: 
Beach Lead 

Represented: No 

Department: 
City Administrator 

Annual Contract  

 Adopted by City Council Draft,  2019 
  

Job Description 

Position Overview: 
This position is under the immediate direction of the Harbormaster who, in turn reports to the Director of Public 
Works.  The Beach Lead is responsible for various administrative work and oversight of staff for the City’s 
various Lakefront enterprises.  “Lakefront” is defined as all City of Lake Geneva owned property and buildings 
located along Geneva Lake between the west end fishing pier, up to Baker Park (excluding Seminary Park). 
 

Essential Job Functions: 

• Hire, supervise and discipline beach staff as well as part time park staff assigned to the Beach Lead and 
ensure all beach assigned staff are carrying out their stated responsibilities.  Also responsible for sending 
all required hiring and review (evaluation) paperwork to personnel.  Also responsible for establishing 
work schedules of all staff under his/her supervision. 
 

• Responsible for reviewing and recommending (to the Harbormaster) any revisions to existing job 
descriptions of positions under the direction of the Beach Lead.  
 

• Responsible for reporting any personnel related issues or changes to the Harbormaster in a timely 
manner. 
 

• Responsible for the opening and closing of the beach or appointing a responsible designee in the absence 
of the Beach Lead. 
 

• Responsible for handling all cash and balancing of all receipts from beach related transactions, as well 
as working with City Hall staff as necessary. 
 

• Responsible for posting of any signs (public notices, warnings, etc.) on the beach per any notifications 
issued by the Geneva Lake Environmental Agency (GLEA) 
 

• Responsible for making sure beach staff keeps the boardwalk, west pier and fishing pier clear and in 
compliance with ADA requirements. 
 

• Responsible for ensuring staff maintains the beach house as it relates to janitorial duties including but 
not limited to:  keeping beach house stocked with toilet paper, hand towels, replacement of burned out 
light bulbs, sweeping, minor painting, minor maintenance, mopping / washing of any spills, emptying of 
full garbage containers, flushing toilets, cleaning mirrors, unplugging of toilets.  For those items staff is 
not equipped to repair; staff must report all outstanding issues to the Beach Lead immediately. 
 
 
 



• Ensure the following facilities are inspected, cleaned and maintained by beach staff (on, at a minimum, 
hourly basis):  West End restrooms, Library restrooms, Riviera restrooms, beach house and Visitor 
Center restrooms.  As well as hourly trash pick-up from the “west end fishing pier” to the municipal 
boat launch.  In the course of inspecting the lake front, beach staff are also responsible for reporting any 
safety hazards or illegal activity they may observe. 
 

• Responsible for ordering all supplies necessary to operate and maintain the beach (ordering wrist bands, 
toilet paper, paper towels, garbage bags, cleaning equipment, cleaning supplies, etc.) 
 

• Respond to all complaints received (in person, phone, mail or email) in a prompt and professional 
manner. 
 

• Responsible for directing beach staff to recognize and address any other items along the lake front that 
may need attention such as removing sea weed and other debris. 
 

• Train and direct beach staff to assist with Beach Pay stations including: 
-Beach attendants monitor and assist customers with pay station transactions including parking meters 
-Resupply receipt paper and performs minor maintenance of beach pay station 
-Maintain visibility in the City, interacting with the public, providing answers to questions about beach                   
  and or other information about the area; including parking meters on Wrigley Drive 
 

• Train and direct beach staff in regard to checking Beach Passes: 
     -Greet visitors in a polite, friendly and helpful manner answering customers' questions  

-Be able to understand all policies and regulations of the beach and be able to explain them pleasantly 
-Verify and check-in current beach passes  
-Read the beach pass receipt and give accurate change that is due  
-Provide refund upon receipt 
-Put on wristbands  
-Perform locker procedures & $1.00 rental transactions 
 

• Train and direct beach staff in regard to checking coolers 
-Identify any bags that are “coolers” 
-Remove any glass or alcohol in the coolers 

 

• Train and direct staff in beach monitoring 
-Monitor beach activity for smoking, alcohol, and illegal beach entrance 

 

• Train and direct staff in regard to beach / facilities maintenance 
-Set up workstations including chairs or equipment needed 
-Keep work areas clean  
 

 

 



 

Generate required reports 

-Maintain and complete daily beach intake sheets 
-Balance out bank and refund slips accurately 
-Cash handling, banking related, /balance sheet/wrist band inventory sheets 
-Written reports on staff overtime and resources or repairs needed 

  

This position will be an annual contracted position with the City of Lake Geneva.  It is estimated this position 
will be nearly full time between the months of May and Mid-September with greatly reduced (nearly no) work 
hours between Mid-September and April. 

 

NOTE:  This job description is not intended to be all-inclusive.  Employee may perform other related duties as 
needed to meet the ongoing needs of the organization. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Draft:  Last revision October 3, 2019 



 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

1 

  

SOFTWARE LICENSE AND SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 

This Software License and Service Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of the Effective Date 

set forth below by and between Passport Labs, Inc. (“Passport”) and the party named below (“Provider”).  

This Agreement includes and incorporates the terms and conditions found in this document, the Terms and 

Conditions found in Exhibit A, and the terms and conditions found in all other Exhibits hereto, which 

represent the full and complete understanding and agreement of Passport and Provider with respect to the 

subject matter hereof.  In exchange for the mutual covenants herein and other good and valuable 

consideration, the Parties agree and intend to be bound as follows: 

 

I. GENERAL TERMS 

 

Provider Legal Name: City of Lake Geneva, WI  Contact:  Sylvia Mullally 

Email: smullally@cityoflakegeneva.com Phone: (262) 248-3673 ext. 1  

Provider Contact Address  

 

626 Geneva Street  

Lake Geneva, WI 53147  

 

 

Provider Billing Contact Address 

 

626 Geneva Street  

Lake Geneva, WI 53147  

 

 

Effective Date: 

Services: 

Passport will provide services (the “Services”) and license all software, including all web and mobile 

applications and related documentation, (the “Software”) necessary for Provider to operate a mobile 

payment for parking program (“MPP”) which allows all parking customers in any parking facilities 

owned or managed by Provider (the “Premises”) the ability to pay for parking using a smartphone 

application or mobile web application. 

Governing State Law Wisconsin  

Term: 

This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and continue for a period of one (1) year (the 

“Initial Term”). Thereafter, the Agreement shall automatically renew for additional one (1) year 

periods (each a “Renewal Term”) unless either Party notifies the other in writing of its intent not to 

renew no less than thirty (30) days before the expiration of Initial Term or Renewal Term, as 

applicable. Following the Initial Term, either party may terminate the agreement upon thirty (30) 

days written notice to the non-terminating party. 
 

 

(continued on next page) 



 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

2 

II. MOBILE PAYMENT FOR PARKING TERMS 

 

Equipment Provided by Passport: Initial Signs 

 

On-Street Parking: 1 

sign per 5 parking 

spaces or 2 signs per 

block space for LPR 

environments;  

Off-Street Parking: 1 

sign per 10 parking 

spaces  

Initial Decals 

 

1 decal per 

hardware unit  

Installation:  

Provider will be solely responsible for installing all signs and decals in the Premises. This obligation 

includes the responsibility to provide all hardware necessary to affix and display signs and decals, 

including without limitation, all hooks, poles, posts, brackets, screws, bolts, and nuts 

Ancillary Fees:  

a) Zone setup fees of three dollars ($3.00) per space - WAIVED 

b) Initial Signs and Stickers – WAIVED 

(unit prices of twenty dollars ($20.00) per sign and three dollars ($3.00) per decal will apply 

to additional or replacement orders) 

c) Provider will pay a ten dollar ($10.00) administrative fee in addition to sign and shipping 

costs per sign for any additional or replacement signs purchased through Passport 

d) Provider will pay a one dollar ($1.00) administrative fee in addition to decal and shipping 

costs per decal for any additional or replacement decals purchased through Passport 

e) Passport will provide a design file to allow Provider to print replacement signs and decals 

f) Provider will reimburse Passport for any and all reasonable travel, lodging, and food expenses 

incurred by Passport employees while traveling at Provider’s request 

 

 

(continued on next page)



 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

3 

III. FEES 

 

Per Transaction MPP Service and License Fee*  $0.37  

Maximum Convenience Fee Passed through to Parking Customers $0.37 

Merchant Processing Costs: 

Provider will be responsible for paying all merchant processing costs, including, without limitation, 

settlement fees, payment gateway fees, chargeback fees, and interchange reimbursement fees. 

Merchant of Record for Transactions:    

  

   X          Passport              Provider 

Passport Merchant Processing Rate Per Transaction:   Included in Per 

Transaction MPP 

Service and 

License Fee  

Payment Gateway Provider:            X            Passport Other 

Passport Gateway Fee Per Transaction: Included in Per Transaction MPP Service and 

License Fee  

*An MPP “transaction” is a single session lasting less than twenty-four (24) hours in duration. 

 

Passport Labs, Inc:      Provider: 

 

By:  __________________________   By: __________________________ 

 

Name:  Khristian Gutierrez    Name:  Tom Hartz 

 

Title:  Chief Revenue Officer     Title: Mayor



 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

4 

Exhibit A 

Terms and Conditions 

 

1. Services 

 

Passport shall perform the services in a competent, professional, and workmanlike manner consistent with 

industry practices.  Passport will maintain all permits, certificates and licenses required by applicable law 

and Passport’s employees performing the services will be fully qualified, licensed as required, and skilled 

to perform the services.  Passport warrants that it has the power to enter into and perform this Agreement 

and that it will at all times during the term of this Agreement be, duly organized, validly existing and in 

good standing under the laws of the state of Delaware. 

 

2. Compliance with Laws and Codes 

 

In providing the services under this Agreement, Passport will comply at its sole cost and expense with all 

applicable federal, state, county, and municipal laws, statutes, rules, regulations and ordinances.  If 

requested by Provider while performing services at Provider’s place of business, Passport will comply with 

Provider’s dress and conduct codes and security protocols. 

 

3. PCI Certification 

 

For the duration of the term of this Agreement, Passport will maintain Payment Card Industry – Data 

Security Standard certification. 

 

4. Product Updates 

 

Any system-wide improvements or modifications made by Passport to the Software will, when available, 

be provided to Provider at no charge to Provider and will automatically be subject to the terms of this 

Agreement. 

 

Provider may request new features or functionality to be built into the system, and, to the extent that 

Passport plans to incorporate such requested new features or functionality into the Software, Passport will 

develop such features and functionality at no cost to the Provider pursuant to Passport’s development 

timeline. If the Provider desires to expedite such development, Passport may, in its sole discretion, charge 

Provider an expedite fee of two hundred dollars ($200.00) per development hour necessary to develop the 

requested features or functionality, provided, however, that Passport shall first notify Provider and receive 

written approval from Provider to proceed. If the Provider’s requested features or functionality are created 

for the Provider’s use and Passport does not plan to incorporate such requested features into the Software, 

Passport may, in its sole discretion, charge Provider a custom development fee of two hundred and fifty 

dollars ($250.00) per hour for the development of such features or functionality, provided, however, that 

Passport shall first notify Provider and receive written approval from Provider to proceed. 

 

In addition to or in lieu of the fees set forth in this section, the parties may establish a monthly software 

license or maintenance fee that will be mutually agreed between the parties in a separate written addendum 

to this Agreement. 

 

5. Changes 

 

Any changes to the scope of services provided under this Agreement shall be set forth in a written change 

order or amendment signed by both parties setting forth the scope of the change(s) and any applicable fees. 

 



 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

5 

6. Additional Passport Services 

 

Passport provides all of the following software platforms as part of its overall technology portfolio: mobile 

payments for parking, citation management, digital permits, and mobile payments for transit.  Provider may 

request the addition of any of these platforms to the extent not provided by Passport to Provider as of the 

Effective Date, and any additional platforms developed by Passport from and after the Effective Date, which 

shall be memorialized in an addendum to this Agreement including the fees applicable to such platform(s) 

and any additional applicable service or legal terms. 

 

7. Scheduled Maintenance 

 

If Passport plans to perform any scheduled maintenance during business hours, Passport will provide notice 

to Provider at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the commencement of such scheduled 

maintenance. For the purpose of this section, “business hours” means Monday through Friday between 9 

am 5 pm EDT.  In the event that Passport determines that unscheduled maintenance is necessary, Passport 

will give Provider as much advance notice as is reasonably practicable, unless such unscheduled 

maintenance is necessitated by emergency circumstances for which it would be unfeasible or impossible to 

notify Provider in advance. 

 

8. System Uptime; Billing Credits 

 

Passport will provide the Software with uptime of at least ninety-nine percent (99.0%) calculated over a 

rolling six-month period (“Uptime Guarantee”). For any month during which system uptime drops below 

the Uptime Guarantee, Passport will provide a billing credit in an amount equal to the percentage difference 

between a) the lowest uptime reached at any point during the month (calculated on a rolling six month 

period) and b) the Uptime Guarantee, multiplied by the total fees payable to Passport for such month. For 

example, if during a given month the software uptime falls to ninety-five percent (95.0%) and if during that 

month the fees payable to Passport were one hundred dollars ($100.00), Passport will issue a billing credit 

of four dollars ($4.00).  For the purposes of this agreement, uptime is defined as any period of time during 

which end users of the Software can use the Software. 

 

9. Service Levels 

 

Subject to the uptime guarantee set forth in Section 8, Passport’s sole and exclusive obligation in the event 

of an error or interruption of the Software is to use its best efforts to restore or repair the Software as quickly 

as practicable. 

 

10. Technical Support 

 

A. Passport will provide telephone and email support to Provider’s staff 

from Monday to Friday between the hours of 8:00 a.m to 7:00 p.m. EST to address technical and operating 

setting issues.  Passport will provide "after-hours emergency telephone support" available 24/7.  

• Monday-Friday 8AM - 7PM EST 

o (US) 980-939-0990 

o Help@passportinc.com 

• After-Hours Emergency Support  

o 866.815.3043 

mailto:Help@passportinc.com


 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

6 

 B. Provider will provide initial support, including inquires via telephone and email, for end-users 

("parkers").  If the Provider is unable to address the parkers technical questions, Provider may escalate end-

users to Passport’s End-User Support Team for technical issues from Monday to Saturday between the 

hours of 8:00 a.m to 9:00 p.m. EST at (US) 704-817-2500 or Support@passportinc.com.  Provider may not 

display Passport’s phone number (or other direct contact information for Passport) on any marketing or 

signage visible by parkers.  

 

11. Data Rights 

 

This Section shall govern the rights of Passport and Provider, as the case may be, with respect to the data 

that is subject to this Agreement.  Passport will, by provisions in its Privacy Policy or otherwise, procure 

from such end users all such lawful consents and rights necessary to grant to Provider the rights in such 

data as stated in this Section. Passport’s Privacy Policy, as it may be amended from time to time in 

Passport’s sole discretion, can be viewed at https://passportinc.com/privacy-policy/. 

 

A. Operational data is data specific to the Provider’s operation that is provided by Provider to Passport 

to be used in the providing of services.  Operational data is specific to the Provider’s operation, which is 

not available to Passport publicly or by other means.  Operational data may include, but is not limited to, 

zone information, rate information, operational schedules, business metrics, relevant details of partner 

agreements.  In each case, Operational data may refer to past, present, or future states of such items. 

 

Operational data is the sole and exclusive property of the Provider.  The Provider grants Passport a 

perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free, non-exclusive, non-assignable, and non-transferrable license to 

Operational data, provided that, Passport may assign or transfer such license to a successor in connection 

with the transfer or sale of all or substantially all of its assets or business related to this agreement, or in the 

event of its merger, consolidation, change in control or similar transaction. 

 

B.  Payment Card Industry-Data Security Standard Information (“PCI-DSS 

Information”) consists of the following items, each as defined by the then-current Payment Card Industry 

Data Security Standards (“PCI-DSS”): Account Data; Cardholder Data; Primary Account Number; and 

Sensitive Authentication Data. 

 

Passport acquires a license or sublicense to the PCI-DSS Information from end users who share such data 

with Passport in connection with their use of the Software. Passport must secure such data in accordance 

with PCI-DSS. As such, Passport may not grant Provider derivative rights to such PCI-DSS Information 

and Passport shall not be required to disclose such PCI-DSS Information to Provider. 

 

C. Personal identifiable information (“PII”) is any representation of information that permits the 

identity of an individual to whom the information applies to be reasonably determined or inferred by either 

direct or indirect means. Name, address, social security number or other identifying number or code, 

telephone number, or email address directly identify individuals.  Certain data elements—including gender, 

race, birth date, geographic indicator (such as zip code or postal code), and other descriptors—can be used 

in conjunction or with other data elements to indirectly identify individuals. Information permitting the 

physical or online contacting of a specific individual (e.g., IP address) is also personally identifiable 

information. 

End users of Passport’s Software own PII and license it to Passport pursuant to Passport’s Privacy Policy, 

as it may be amended from time to time in Passport’s sole discretion.  Passport may sublicense PII to the 

Provider under certain conditions (including but not limited to the Provider’s compliance with information 

security controls and applicable regulations) that shall be memorialized separately if and when applicable. 

 

mailto:Support@passportinc.com


 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

7 

D. Activity data is any data generated in the providing of services under this agreement by Passport to 

Provider and by end users’ interactions with the services or with Passport directly that is not otherwise PCI-

DSS information or PII as defined above.  Activity data may include, but is not limited to, user interaction 

data, geolocation data, opt-in/opt-out status (including compliance logs), purchase and session data, 

application diagnostic data, service performance data, and support data.  Data that is derived from Activity 

data is also Activity data. 

 

Activity data is the sole and exclusive property of Passport.  Passport grants the Provider an irrevocable, 

royalty-free, non-exclusive, non-assignable, and non-transferrable license to Activity data for the duration 

of the term of this Agreement and only to the extent and in the format that Passport chooses in its sole 

discretion to expose such data through its administrative portal or as otherwise agreed upon with the 

Provider and only for the Provider’s internal use in connection with the services provided under this 

agreement. 

 

12. Privacy Policy; Terms of Use 

 

End users’ use of the Services shall at all times be governed by (a) Passport’s Privacy Policy, as it may be 

amended from time to time in Passport’s sole discretion, which can be viewed at 

https://passportinc.com/privacy-policy/, and (b) Passport’s Terms and Conditions, as they may be amended 

from time to time in Passport’s sole discretion, which can be viewed at https://passportinc.com/terms-and-

conditions/. 

 

13. Intellectual Property 

 

A. Passport grants Provider a revocable, non-exclusive, non-assignable, non-transferrable, and non-

subleaseable right and license to use and access the Software only for its internal business purposes for the 

duration of the Term. All intellectual property rights including, without limitation, trade names, source 

code, trademarks, copyrights, patents, and trade secrets, not explicitly granted to Provider in this agreement 

are reserved to Passport.  

 

B. Provider will not, directly, indirectly, alone, or with another party, (I) copy, disassemble, reverse 

engineer, or decompile the software or any subpart thereof; (ii) modify, create derivative works based upon, 

or translate the software or source code; (iii) transfer or otherwise grant any rights in the software or source 

code in any form to any other party; (iv) attempt to do any of the foregoing or cause or permit any third 

party to do or attempt to do any of the foregoing, except as expressly permitted hereunder. 

 

14. Publicity; Use of Names and Marks 

 

Subject to the provisions of Section 19 (Confidentiality) below, the parties will have the right to publicly 

disclose that Passport is Provider’s provider of the Software as set forth herein by means of, by way of 

illustration and not limitation, news releases, public announcements, or other forms of publicity. 

Passport may use the name or marks of Provider, or reference the fact that Provider is a client of Passport, 

for business development purposes, as part of a portfolio or work, or in an illustrative list of clients. 

 

15. Payment Gateway 

 

Provider must supply a payment gateway for the payment of all fees by end users.  Passport can provide 

payment gateway services and Exhibit B contains a list of other payment gateways supported by Passport. 

For any unsupported payment gateway selected by Provider, Passport will charge a two hundred and fifty 

dollar ($250.00) per development hour necessary to perform necessary integrations. Provider will bear all 

costs associated with payment gateway services, including all per transaction costs.  Provider may elect to 



 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

8 

use Passport’s payment gateway at any time (which shall be reflected in a written amendment to this 

Agreement) at the rate of $0.05 per transaction. 

 

16. Payment Terms 

 

If Passport is the Merchant of Record (“MOR”), Passport will remit the funds to Provider from the 

preceding month within fifteen (15) days of the conclusion of the month after netting out Passport’s fees 

and merchant processing fees. 

 

If Provider is the MOR, Passport will send monthly invoices to Provider for all fees payable to Passport 

that accrued during the preceding month. If Provider fails to remit payment according to such invoices 

within thirty (30) days after the date on the invoice, Passport will have the right to suspend Provider’s 

access to the software and/or assess interest at the rate of 18% per annum on the delinquent balance, or the 

maximum rate permitted by state law, if lower, until such delinquent balance is paid. 

 

17. Refunds 

 

Passport agrees to forgo or return, as applicable, its per transaction fees for any refund granted by Provider. 

Provider will be responsible for reimbursing Passport for all merchant processing fees, including without 

limitation payment gateway fees, settlement fees, and interchange reimbursement fees, if any, incurred by 

Passport for all transactions, including refunded transactions. 

 

18. Capacity 

 

Provider represents and warrants that it has obtained or will obtain all applicable governmental approvals, 

authorizations, or licenses necessary to enter into this Agreement. Provider further represents and warrants 

its signatory is duly authorized to bind Provider to the terms herein. 

 

19. Confidentiality 

 

A. Provider and Passport agree to treat this Agreement and all information furnished, or to be 

furnished, by or on behalf of the other party and information analyses, summaries and other work product 

derived from such information (collectively, the “Confidential Information”) in accordance with the 

provisions of this section and to take, or abstain from taking, all actions set forth herein.  Each party, as a 

receiving party, will do the following things with regard to the Confidential Information of the other party: 

 

i. Prevent the disclosure of the Confidential Information by the receiving party and each of the 

receiving party’s employees, agents, and/or professionals to any third party other than as 

permitted under this Agreement; 

ii. Use, and permit the use of, the Confidential Information only for the purposes of providing, or 

enjoying the benefit of, the goods, services, and/or software provided for in this Agreement 

(the “Purpose”); 

iii. Disclose the Confidential Information only to such of the receiving party’s employees, agents, 

and professionals as have a bona fide need to possess or know the Confidential Information in 

the course of accomplishing, or advising the disclosing party with regard to, the Purpose; 

iv. Cause each employee, agent, or professional to whom the receiving party discloses the 

Confidential Information to be bound by an obligation of confidentiality that is at least as 

rigorous as the obligations contained in this Agreement; and 

v. Return or destroy all written or other tangible copies of Confidential Information in the 

receiving party’s possession or direct or indirect control, including all extracts and copies 

thereof, within a reasonable time after, and in accordance with, the disclosing party’s request. 



 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

9 

 

B. Nothing in this Agreement will prevent the receiving party from disclosing or using Confidential 

Information to the extent that: 

i.  It is or becomes readily ascertainable by proper means by the public without any breach of a 

confidentiality obligation of the receiving party; 

ii. It is received from a third party that is not under an obligation of confidentiality of which the 

receiving party knew or had reason to know; 

iii. It was independently developed by the receiving party without use of the Confidential 

Information; or 

iv. It is required by law to be disclosed, provided that the receiving party provides to the disclosing 

party as much notice as is practicable under the circumstances of such requirement prior to 

disclosure and provides to the disclosing party, at the disclosing party’s expense, such 

reasonable assistance as the disclosing party requests in seeking confidential treatment, 

protective orders, nondisclosure, and/or similar measures. 

 

For the avoidance of doubt, none of the requirements of this Section shall prohibit Provider from disclosing 

Confidential Information to the extent that such information is required to be disclosed pursuant to any 

open records law, open meetings law, or any other local public disclosure law applicable to Provider. 

 

20. Wallet Services 

 

Provider may elect to provide parking customers with a virtual wallet (a “wallet program”). With a wallet 

program, parking customers would be required to prepay funds into a wallet account for the payment of 

future parking fees and/or transit ticket fares.  Provider and Passport shall agree in advance on the minimum 

amount required to fund the wallet. 

 

 

21. Marketing and Design Services 

 

At Provider’s request, Passport may provide marketing and design services to Provider as value-added 

services to Provider in connection with the services provided under this Agreement.  Provider should 

contact its Passport sales associate for additional details pertaining to these services.  Any services selected 

and any applicable fees and terms will be memorialized in a written addendum to this Agreement and shall 

be incorporated herein by reference. 

 

22. Cooperative Purchasing 

 

Provider will allow any public agency located in the United States to purchase, and Passport to offer to such 

public agency or agencies, the Software at the same price and under the same conditions agreed upon in 

this Agreement without any competitive bidding on the part of such public agency or agencies, to the extent 

permitted by law.  Each such public agency will execute its own contract directly with Passport and Provider 

shall not incur any responsibility—financial or otherwise—in connection therewith. 

 

23. Force Majeure 

 

Neither Passport nor Provider will be held liable for any delay or omission in performance of their duties 

under this Agreement resulting from causes beyond their reasonable control, including, for the sake of 

illustration and not limitation, delays or omissions attributable to third-party vendors, suppliers, or 

integration partners, labor strikes, acts of god, acts of the public enemy, fires, natural disasters, wars, or 

riots. 

 



 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

10 

24. Disclaimer of Warranties 

 

The Software is provided to Provider by Passport “as is” and with all faults. Provider acknowledges and 

agrees that Passport bears no liability for any error, omission, defect, deficiency, or nonconformity within 

the Software except as expressly provided in this Agreement.  Other than as specifically set forth herein, 

Passport does not make any representations, warranties, or guarantees, express or implied, directly or 

indirectly, including, without limitation, any warranty of condition, merchantability, or fitness for a 

particular purpose or use, with respect to, arising out of, or in connection with the Software and related 

services to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

25. Severability 

 

If any provision of the agreement is found to violate applicable law, the violating provision will be 

ineffective only to the extent that it violates the law, without invalidating the remainder of the section 

containing the violating provision or any other provisions or sections of this Agreement.  Any court or 

arbitrator adjudicating the matter of the invalidity of a provision shall, to the extent permitted by law, reform 

any such illegal or unenforceable provision such as to give it the maximum effect. 

 

26. Assignment 

 

This Agreement and all of its provisions will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and 

their respective permitted successors and assignees. Neither Passport nor Provider may assign any rights, 

interests, or obligations hereunder without prior written consent of the other party, provided, however, that 

Passport may, without such written consent, assign this agreement and its rights and delegate its obligations 

hereunder in connection with the transfer or sale of all or substantially all of its assets or business related 

to this agreement, or in the event of its merger, consolidation, change in control or similar transaction. Any 

permitted assignee shall assume all assigned obligations of its assignor under this agreement. Any purported 

assignment in violation of this section shall be void and of no effect. 

 

27. Contractual Silence 

 

To the extent this Agreement fails to address a condition, obligation, benefit, or other term necessary to 

sufficiently define the relationship between the parties or a disagreement or conflict regarding the 

interpretation or construction of this Agreement arises, the parties agree to reasonably cooperate to draft a 

mutually agreeable amendment that clarifies the duties, rights, and obligations of the parties under this 

Agreement. 

 

28. Amendments 

 

The parties may not amend or modify this agreement except by a written instrument signed by an authorized 

signatory of each party.  

 

29. Currency 

 

Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, all fees and other monetary amounts are in U.S. Dollars.  If a 

currency other than the U.S. Dollar is specified, the exchange rate will be fixed at the foreign exchange rate 

published by the United States Federal Reserve on the date the payment of remittance is transmitted from 

Provider to Passport, or vice versa, as the case may be. 

 

30. Cooperate 

 



 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

11 

If either Provider or Passport has a claim, dispute, or other matter in question for breach of duty, obligations, 

services rendered or any warranty that arises under this agreement, the parties agree to cooperate in good 

faith to achieve a satisfactory resolution of such matter. If after sixty (60) days the dispute remains 

unresolved, the parties may pursue other remedies available at law or in equity.  Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, either party shall have the right to immediately seek any applicable remedies available at law or 

in equity for a breach or threatened breach of the confidentiality obligations as set forth in Section 19. 

 

31. Independent Contractor 

 

Passport is an independent contractor and not an agent or employee of Provider. No agency, partnership, 

franchise, joint venture, or employment relationship exists between Passport and Provider. Passport’s 

employees and agents will not be employees or agents of Provider. Passport shall be fully and solely 

responsible for the supervision, control, performance, compensation, benefits (including, without 

limitation, all forms of insurance) withholdings, health and safety of all of its employees and agents. 

Provider will not be responsible or liable for any withholding taxes or contributions to state worker’s 

compensation, unemployment or other funds or programs. 

 

 

32. Limitation of Liability 

 

In no event will Passport be liable to Provider for any lost profits, lost savings, or punitive, incidental, 

indirect, special, or consequential damages arising out of Provider’s use or inability to use the Software or 

the breach of this agreement, even if Passport has been advised of the possibility of such damages. 

 

33. Notices 

 

All notices, consents, and communications required hereunder shall be given in writing and delivered via 

electronic mail or mail, shall be deemed to be given upon receipt thereof, and shall be sent to the address 

below: 

 

If to Passport: 

 

Passport Labs, Inc. 

Attn: Khristian Gutierrez 

128 S. Tryon St., Suite 2200 

Charlotte, NC 28202 

Fax: (888) 804-1783 

khristian.gutierrez@passportinc.com 

 

With a hard copy to General Counsel and by email to jason.Idilbi@Passportinc.com 

 

If to Provider at the contact information provided on the “General Terms” page. 

    

34. Construction 

 

No rule of law that requires that any part of the Agreement be construed against the party drafting the 

language will be used in interpreting this Agreement. 

 

35. Waiver 

 

mailto:khristian.gutierrez@passportinc.com
mailto:jason.Idilbi@passportinc.com


 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

12 

Any failure or delay by Passport to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall in no way constitute a 

waiver by Passport of any contractual right hereunder, unless such waiver is in writing and signed by 

Passport. 

 

36. Entire Agreement 

 

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this 

Agreement and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous communications, representations or agreements 

between the parties, whether verbal or written, including any printed terms and conditions which may 

appear on either Party’s purchase orders, releases, invoices or other forms to the extent such terms are 

different from or inconsistent with this Agreement.  



 

Passport SLSA (November 2017) 

Confidential 

13 

Exhibit B 

Supported Payment Gateways 

 

1. Authorize.net 

2. Cash Net 

3. Chase Paymentech (Orbital)  - US / Canada 

4. Converge (Elavon) 

5. DataCash - United Kingdom 

6. Desjardins - Canada 

7. FirstData Rapid Connect 

8. FIS Pay 

9. Heartland 

10. Internet Secure 

11. Moneris - US / Canada 

12. Point and Pay 

13. TD Beanstream/Bambora 

14. Vantiv 

15. WorldPay (Securenet) 















































Task Description Date
Public Open House to Review Draft #2 of Comprehensive Plan 

(not Hillmoor-specific)

Thursday, October 24, 6:00-8:00 PM

Police Training Room, City Hall

Hillmoor Working Session with Council & Plan Commission 
Wednesday, November 13, 6:00-8:00 PM

Police Training Room, City Hall

Committee of the Whole Review of Comprehensive Plan Amendment Monday, December 2, City Hall

Public Open House to Review Hillmoor Concept 
December 5, 6:30-8:30 PM

Badger High School Cafeteria

Finalize Draft #3 of the Comprehensive Plan Update Monday, December 16

Finalize Hillmoor Concept Plan and Incorporate into Draft #3 of 

Comprehensive Plan
Monday, December 16

30-Day Review Period December 17-January 19

Comprehensive Plan Public Hearing

Followed by Plan Commission Consideration of Resolution 

Recommending Adoption of Plan

(Joint Meeting of City Council and Plan Commission)

Monday, January 20

Council Chambers, City Hall

Common Council Consideration of Plan Adoption Ordinance
Monday, January 27

Council Chambers, City Hall

Production and Distribution of Final Adopted Plan Early February

City of Lake Geneva Comprehensive Plan Update

Public Meeting & Plan Update Schedule
Revised 10.18.2019

Public input opportunities are bolded.


	0-October 28, 2019 Council Agenda
	Ucity of lake geneva regular common council
	UMonday, October 28, 2019 6:00 p.m.

	08-September 23, 2019 Council Minutes
	Ucity of lake geneva regular common council Minutes
	UMonday, September 23, 2019 6:00 p.m.

	09a-Original Operator License FLR
	10-Ordinance- Parking on Hillside Dr and Lake Shore Dr
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	11a- Resolution 19-R69-2020 Budget Publication
	2019 Notice Page 1
	2019 Notice Page 2

	11b-2020 Budget Publication Explanations
	2019 Notice Page 1
	2019 Notice Page 2

	12a-Resolution 19-R68-Fee Schedule- Event Permit Prices
	Schedule of Fees

	12b-2019 -2021 Agreement for Piers and Buoys with Exhibits
	12c-Sonrise Construction Retainage Release
	12da-Pay2_Memo
	12db-SIGNED_PayApp2
	20190926112358778
	253251-02 Executed Pay App

	12dc-2019_LGStreets_PaymentTab_2
	12ea-Beach Attendant
	12eb-Beach Lead
	12f-City of Lake Geneva WI - Software License and Service Agreement 7 3 19
	2. Compliance with Laws and Codes
	In providing the services under this Agreement, Passport will comply at its sole cost and expense with all applicable federal, state, county, and municipal laws, statutes, rules, regulations and ordinances.  If requested by Provider while performing s...
	3. PCI Certification
	4. Product Updates
	7. Scheduled Maintenance
	8. System Uptime; Billing Credits
	9. Service Levels
	10. Technical Support
	11. Data Rights
	12. Privacy Policy; Terms of Use
	End users’ use of the Services shall at all times be governed by (a) Passport’s Privacy Policy, as it may be amended from time to time in Passport’s sole discretion, which can be viewed at https://passportinc.com/privacy-policy/, and (b) Passport’s Te...
	13. Intellectual Property
	14. Publicity; Use of Names and Marks
	15. Payment Gateway
	16. Payment Terms
	17. Refunds
	18. Capacity
	20. Wallet Services
	21. Marketing and Design Services
	At Provider’s request, Passport may provide marketing and design services to Provider as value-added services to Provider in connection with the services provided under this Agreement.  Provider should contact its Passport sales associate for addition...
	22. Cooperative Purchasing
	If to Passport:
	With a hard copy to General Counsel and by email to jason.Idilbi@Passportinc.com
	No rule of law that requires that any part of the Agreement be construed against the party drafting the language will be used in interpreting this Agreement.

	12ga-Prepaid Checks Report- FLR Approved 10-1-2019
	12gb-Regular Checks Report- FLR Approved 10-1-2019
	12gc-Prepaid Checks- FLR Approved 10-15-2019
	12gd-Regular Checks- FLR Approved 10-15-2019
	13-Lake Geneva Comp - Public Meeting Schedule
	0-October 28, 2019 Council Agenda.pdf
	city of lake geneva regular common council
	Monday, October 28, 2019 6:00 p.m.


